STATE OF MICHIGAN DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING

PAGE 1 TO 42

Taken at 1301 Third Avenue, Media Room,
Detroit Public Safety Headquarters,
Detroit, Michigan, 48226,
Commencing at 3:06 p.m.,
Thursday, October 16th, 2014,
Before Elizabeth Koller, CSR-7042.



10/16/2014

1	APPEARANCES:
2	CHAIRPERSON WILLIE E. BELL
3	COMMISSIONER RICARDO MOORE
4	COMMISSIONER WILLIE E. BURTON
5	COMMISSIONER JESSICA TAYLOR
6	COMMISSIONER REGINALD CRAWFORD
7	COMMISSIONER WENDELL BYRD
8	COMMISSIONER RICHARD SHELBY
9	EXECUTIVE SECRETARY GEORGE ANTHONY
10	DEPUTY CHIEF HALL
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



- 1 Detroit, Michigan
- 2 October 16, 2014
- 3 About 3:06 p.m.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Good afternoon
- 5 AUDIENCE: Good afternoon.
- 6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I extend a warm welcome to
- 7 you for the weekly meeting of the Board of Police
- 8 Commission. I am your Chair, Willie Bell, and I say
- 9 warm reception because the room is a little chilly but
- 10 I know your heart is warm. So I want to welcome you
- and we're going to move forward with the business at
- 12 hand.
- I'm going to ask our Board Secretary
- 14 Mr. George Anthony to introduce the Commissioners for
- 15 roll call.
- 16 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
- 17 For the record, George Anthony, Secretary to the Board.
- 18 Commissioner Lisa Carter has asked to be excused.
- 19 She's under the weather. Commissioner Willie E.
- 20 Burton.
- 21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Present.
- 22 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Wendell L.
- 23 Byrd.
- 24 COMMISSIONER BYRD: Present.
- 25 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Reginald



- 1 Crawford.
- 2 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Present.
- 3 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Ricardo R.
- 4 Moore.
- 5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Present.
- 6 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Richard
- 7 Shelby.
- 8 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Present.
- 9 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Jessica
- 10 Taylor. Commissioner Donnell R. White has asked to be
- 11 excused.
- Mr. Chair, you have a quorum of six
- 13 Commissioners.
- 14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir. And I
- 15 would take the privilege to introducing or Deputy Chief
- 16 Renee Hall to my left.
- D.C. HALL: Hello.
- 18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Deputy Chief Hall, if you
- 19 would want to introduce your partial staff that would
- 20 be great at this time.
- D.C. HALL: Okay. Good afternoon. Deputy
- 22 Chief Tina Tolliver from Budget and Finance, and then
- 23 we have from Domestic Violence, Sergeant Williams, we
- 24 have Officer Doha from Grants and Contracts, then we
- 25 have Officer Millhouse from Grants and Contracts, and



- 1 then Sergeant Franklin from Grants and Contracts. I
- 2 think that's everybody -- oh, I'm sorry.
- 3 MS. MOSS: Alia Moss, from Budget.
- D.C. HALL: Okay. Alia Moss, from Budget and
- 5 Fiscal.
- 6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We have two or three from
- 7 Budget?
- 8 D.C. HALL: Yes.
- 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Good to see
- 10 you. It's always good to talk about money.
- 11 Mr. Secretary, Mr. Anthony, would you introduce the
- 12 staff of the Board of Police Commission, please?
- 13 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, sir.
- 14 Ms. Aliyah Sabre seated to my right is our Attorney to
- 15 the Board; Ms. Pamela Davis-Drake, seated in front is
- 16 our Chief Investigator, Sergeant Alan Quinn is our
- 17 recorder, and Ms. Elizabeth Koller from Hanson Court
- 18 Reporting Service is taking the transcript. That
- 19 completes the introductions.
- 20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. At this time
- 21 we all need a prayer, so let us pray.
- 22 (Prayer.)
- 23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Our first order of
- 24 business would be the approval of the agenda.
- 25 Commissioners, you have the agenda before you. What is



- 1 your pleasure?
- 2 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So move.
- 3 COMMISSIONER BYRD: Second.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly moved
- 5 and second. Questions? All those in favor?
- 6 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed? The motion
- 8 carried.
- 9 The next order of business will be the
- 10 minutes from Thursday, October the 9th, 2014. You had
- 11 an opportunity to review the minutes and what is your
- 12 pleasure?
- 13 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So move.
- 14 COMMISSIONER BYRD: Second.
- 15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Are we ready for the
- 16 question? Those in favor?
- 17 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
- 18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed? Motion
- 19 carried.
- I will reserve my brief remarks after we
- 21 perhaps go through a couple items on the agenda. I
- 22 think that we are prepared to address reports and I
- 23 think we have a preparation for, first of all, is that
- 24 Grants and Contracts?
- D.C. HALL: Yes.



- 1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Do you want to do your
- 2 report first?
- 3 D.C. HALL: I'll do my report right quick.
- 4 Through the Chair, I just want to report out that on
- 5 Tuesday of this week we have restored order in the
- 6 9th Precinct our nine/seven area which has been a
- 7 problematic area historically for us.
- 8 We're trying to trend down, seeing some
- 9 trends in the downward direction, but we still know we
- 10 need a lot of work. So we had 30 felony arrests, three
- 11 misdemeanor arrests, we have 51 grams of cocaine,
- 12 103 grams of heroin, 1,145 grams of marijuana, plus
- 13 95 grow plants which we got out of a house that had
- just set up a grow operation, and we confiscated \$5,537
- in currency. So it was a successful operation and
- 16 we're constantly working in that area and across the
- 17 City.
- I believe we do have a separate grant DEDI,
- 19 Detroit Eastern District Initiative Grant and we are
- 20 working diligently with that one, as well. We have an
- 21 operation going today and I'll be able to report those
- 22 stats out on next week's Board Meeting.
- Just going to the weekend we will be hosting
- 24 again our I think it's 57th Free Press Marathon on
- 25 Sunday. So we're expecting thousands and thousands,



- about 27,000 runners, 60,000 spectators for the
- 2 marathon alone and then at the same time we'll be
- 3 preparing for the football game which is at 1:00 that
- 4 day, so another 60,000 plus for the football game. So
- 5 just an eventful day.
- 6 Detroit has a restricted day for our
- 7 resources to ensure that we are protecting the citizens
- 8 in the City as well as maintaining safety in the
- 9 Downtown area for the Free Press Marathon and the
- 10 football game. So that's what we're doing from a
- 11 Department standard for this week.
- And right now we're going to have D.C.
- 13 Tolliver who's going to present for Grants and
- 14 Contracts, she's going to give you an overview of
- 15 Grants and Contracts Units.
- D.C. TOLLIVER: Good afternoon.
- 17 COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
- D.C. TOLLIVER: I'm Second Deputy Chief Tina
- 19 Tolliver in charge of the Department's Budget and
- 20 Fiscal Operations. Today we will be providing an
- 21 overview of our Grants and Contracts Unit.
- With me, as you've already met, we have some
- 23 of our great staff members who are part what I tell
- 24 everyone one of the best grant operations in the City.
- 25 We also have with us a member from the Office of Grants



- 1 Management Department that will be speaking to you as
- 2 well to discuss their role in the City's grant
- 3 processes.
- 4 This is our organizational structural for
- 5 Budget and Fiscal Operations. Under Fiscal Operations
- 6 we have Fiscal Administration, Centralized Time
- 7 Keeping, Accounting, Purchasing, and Accounts Payable,
- 8 then we also have Budget Operations, Payroll, and
- 9 Grants and Contracts.
- 10 Accounting works closely with our Finance
- 11 Department, Purchasing works closely with our
- 12 Purchasing Department and our accounts payable staff
- works closely with the City's Accounts Payable
- 14 Division. The Budget Operations staff they work
- 15 closely with the City's Budget Department, and Payroll
- and Grants and Contracts although they don't directly
- 17 report to or have to work with anyone in the City they
- 18 do a great job as well.
- 19 Grants and Contracts seeks, administers,
- 20 reviews and monitors the Department's various grants.
- 21 The unit also coordinates and monitors the Department's
- 22 contracts and memorandums of understanding. They
- 23 facilitate and process the various contracts which
- 24 include building leases, personal service contracts,
- 25 professional service contracts, intergovernmental



- 1 agreement and memorandums of understanding.
- In addition, they also facilitate the
- 3 acceptance of donations, which can include cash,
- 4 equipment or other services. Some our grant sources
- 5 include other governmental entities, private
- 6 foundations and corporations.
- 7 And we've been fortunate enough to receive
- 8 funds to purchase technology, vehicles and equipment,
- 9 contractual services and also pay for salary overtime
- 10 and fringes for certain units.
- The next slide includes a list of the current
- 12 grants we have. Most of these grants are multi-year
- 13 grants, okay, and these expenditures are through the
- 14 period of June 2014. The multi-year grants are
- 15 typically your JAG or your COPS grants. For those with
- an expiration date of September 30, they are in the
- 17 process of being closed out and for some of them the
- 18 new grants have already begun.
- 19 Our team is currently working on
- 20 fourth-quarter reports. The total awards for these
- 21 grants is \$31.4 million with expenditures of
- 22 \$18.9 million through June 2014. If we take a look at
- 23 some of the grants, and I just want to explain a couple
- 24 because we do have some balances that you may have
- 25 questions about, the 2010, '11 and '12 JAG grants are



- on track for our project timelines. We have recently
- 2 received extension approval from the Department of
- 3 Justice and approval of our project timeline. The 2013
- 4 grant has recently begun and the county got the
- 5 notification from the Department of Justice about the
- 6 award in late September 2013.
- 7 The 2011 COPS Grant, you may or may not
- 8 recall that during a particular year during the budget
- 9 development process the Department's budget was
- decreased by \$8.3 million when we got to the City
- 11 Council stage. There were concerns at the time because
- we had just hired new officers and they had only been
- 13 here a few months.
- 14 After negotiating with City Council,
- 15 \$6.3 million was restored which left the \$2 million
- 16 cut. We had received authorization or approval of the
- awards from the COPS office near that same period; and
- 18 so the challenge was because we had to delete some
- 19 positions out of the budget and the concerns over
- 20 supplanting which is reducing your budget and then
- 21 replacing it with another grant, we had go to the
- 22 Department of Justice and ask for authorization to
- 23 switch from a new hire grant to a preventing layoff, so
- 24 there's like three categories.
- Once they approved that we were able to keep



- 1 those members on board and they began in March of 2012
- which was a six month delay. So that's a brief
- 3 explanation on the balances for that grant.
- 4 Some the other grants have balances just
- 5 because of timing issues. Although we may receive an
- 6 award in a particular year especially if the award
- 7 includes sub-recipients it can take a lot of time to
- 8 get those sub-recipients on board, get their contracts
- 9 together, get all the clearances from the DOJ, get it
- 10 through Council and at the time get it through the GM's
- 11 office.
- Now, what I would like to do is I would ask
- 13 Deputy Director Lisa Jones from the Office of Grants
- 14 Management could come up now or if you'd like we can
- 15 proceed with your questions. Thank you.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: What is your pleasure,
- 17 Commissioners, proceed or pause for questions?
- 18 COMMISSIONERS: Proceed.
- D.C. TOLLIVER: Thank you.
- D.D. JONES: Good afternoon.
- 21 COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
- D.D. JONES: My name is Lisa Jones and I am
- 23 the Deputy Director for the Office of Grants Management
- 24 for the City of Detroit. As you can see in the
- 25 handouts provided we have a draft of the OGM's



- 1 organizational chart for our department. We are a
- 2 newly created department under the OCFO's structure.
- And you'll also see a handout describing the
- 4 roles and responsibilities and the future state for the
- 5 City of Detroit which includes the Office of Grants
- 6 Management, Centralized Finance, and also the
- 7 departmental roles in Grants Management going forward.
- 8 So the OGM will be the centralized office
- 9 managing grants for the City of Detroit. The OGM's
- 10 core functions will be grants management, reporting and
- 11 compliance. We will be collaborating with the
- 12 recipient departments which will still set the budgets
- for grant awards, administer and provide program
- 14 delivery for their grants on a daily basis and provide
- 15 data points for reporting to the OGM.
- With the establishment of the OGM, the
- department's role with regard to financial management
- 18 and grants will change. Still compliance is everyone's
- 19 job and OGM is here to provide support and training
- 20 around grants compliance.
- Our goal is for the City of Detroit to have
- 22 zero audit findings on it's annual single audit report,
- 23 and our current priorities are to ensure that grants
- 24 are spent in a timely fashion and on allowable
- 25 expenditures.



- In addition, it is our job to work with the
- 2 departments to help find additional grant funds for all
- 3 the recipient departments. So we're excited to be here
- 4 as a team. We're still in our implementation phase.
- 5 But thank you for allowing us to speak with you today.
- 6 And if you have any questions about the Office of
- 7 Grants Management and our role in the grants management
- 8 process I will be happy to answer those questions.
- 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioners, questions,
- 10 concerns?
- 11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair, I
- 12 noticed it said, draft, on these copies. Are these
- 13 finalized or are these still in the draft mode?
- 14 D.D. JONES: They're more final than they
- 15 were when they were drafted. Again, because we're
- 16 still in the implementation phase and in case you are
- 17 unaware the Office of CFO is a undergoing
- 18 restructuring, as well, and the Office of Grants
- 19 Management is the first initiative to roll out of that
- 20 restructuring. So for the most part they're pretty
- 21 solid but they may change depending on what happens
- 22 with the OCFO's restructuring.
- 23 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Timeframe?
- D.D. JONES: I think ours, the OGM's role
- 25 will be confirmed probably by the end of the calendar



- 1 year. The OCFO's restructuring initiative will go into
- 2 2015.
- 3 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.
- 5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the Chair, I
- 6 had a question for Second Deputy Chief Tolliver, in
- 7 reference to these COPS grants, hiring grants.
- 8 Recently, I guess, four weeks ago there was something
- 9 from COPS coming out of Washington from the government
- 10 in terms of I guess they release some grant funding for
- 11 additional or I guess for 2014 or something like that.
- D.C. TOLLIVER: I'm sorry, what is the
- 13 question?
- 14 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Are you aware of that
- 15 or is there -- I know she had 2011 and '12 and '13.
- 16 Where are we today in terms of the number, the actual
- 17 number? Is it fifty or twenty or something like that,
- 18 money that's allocated under that grant to hire police
- 19 officers?
- D.C. TOLLIVER: If we can just go back to the
- 21 sheet. If I recall, the 2009 was for fifty officers,
- 22 the 2011 was for twenty-five officers, and the 2013, I
- 23 believe that was for ten officers, ten or fifteen, and
- 24 we have recently submitted our request for the COPS
- 25 2014 and we're waiting to get some official word on



- 1 that.
- 2 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, because I do
- 3 recall when we were at the conference in Kansas City
- 4 there was an announcement coming from someone
- 5 representing COPS and also the federal government as to
- 6 a couple weeks later thereafter the conference it was
- 7 going to release of some funding for that.
- 8 D.C. TOLLIVER: Right. Typically because we
- 9 work so close with the Department or the COPS Office
- 10 we're notified when those grants opportunities are
- 11 coming up, so we're made aware of it well before the
- 12 application period.
- 13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. Okay.
- 14 Thank you.
- D.C. TOLLIVER: Okay. Anything else from
- 16 your Honorable Body?
- 17 CHAIRPERSON BELL. Any other questions,
- 18 concerns? Thank you, ma'am, appreciate it.
- D.C. TOLLIVER: Thank you.
- 20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Deputy Chief Hall, could
- 21 you make recognition of other personnel that has joined
- 22 us?
- 23 D.C. HALL: Yes. We have Deputy Chief Celia
- 24 Washington who just came in and we have also Commander
- 25 Todd Bettison and Sergeant Perkins.



- 1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. And to my left
- 2 is Commissioner Jessica Taylor, immediate past chair
- 3 has joined us five minutes ago.
- 4 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Thank you, sir.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I didn't want to
- 6 interrupt.
- 7 D.C. HALL: Through the Chair, we have a
- 8 presentation from Domestic Violence.
- 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.
- 10 SGT. WILLIAMS: Good afternoon.
- 11 COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.
- 12 SGT. WILLIAMS: I am Sergeant Kyla Williams,
- 13 Officer in Charge of Domestic Violence, and thank you
- 14 for putting us on your agenda at such short notice.
- About a month ago, I received an email from
- 16 someone who works at Verizon Wireless Corporation and
- 17 they have a special program where they support domestic
- 18 violence programs, and they wanted to provide the
- 19 Detroit Police Department through the Domestic Violence
- 20 Unit up to \$200,000 in funds for domestic violence
- 21 awareness, that would be training, equipment and
- 22 advocacy.
- 23 As of last night, it sort of kind changed
- 24 because they didn't want to have some type of conflict
- of interest. Deputy Director Jones talked more with



- 1 Mr. Thomas from Verizon Wireless and she can speak to
- 2 that. But before we move forward we just wanted
- 3 approval to accept the funds. So I'll let Deputy
- 4 Director Jones inform you of her conversation with the
- 5 Verizon Wireless Foundation.
- 6 D.D. JONES: So I had a conversation
- 7 yesterday, and after further review the Verizon
- 8 Wireless Foundation thought it would be a conflict of
- 9 interest to award the funds directly to the City
- 10 because the City is a customer of Verizon and so they
- 11 are requesting to be able to funnel the money through
- 12 an external partner, perhaps the YWCA, but they are
- open to whatever recommendations that we provide to
- 14 them.
- They suggested the YWCA because they already
- 16 administer the Hope Line Project. And so he also
- indicated that they would be able to then provide the
- 18 services that we provided in the proposal and that
- 19 includes training of about a hundred officers, also the
- 20 equipment and these survivor kits and the advocacy, as
- 21 well.
- So in essence, DPD, the DV Unit would be able
- 23 to still carry out the activities as were initially
- 24 proposed but the money will run through an external
- 25 entity. So any questions about that?



- 1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well, my first question,
- 2 I'm looking through -- do we have something on that
- 3 what you proposed, something in writing?
- D.C. TOLLIVER: Mr. Thomas, with Verizon, he
- 5 only sent an email so I do have an email I can send
- 6 you. I have a copy of it here in my portfolio. I have
- 7 to reach out to him today and request a formal --
- 8 something formal in writing from Verizon, but I do have
- 9 the email sent from Mr. Thomas at Verizon to myself.
- 10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well, in that case, I
- 11 don't think -- we can receive your report, but I don't
- 12 think we can take any action on it because we have
- 13 nothing formally for the Board to review and basically
- 14 have a discussion on it and respond to it.
- I think that we are pleased in terms of you
- 16 moving in this direction. I know you have Plan B now.
- 17 But if you could forward that to us as soon as possible
- 18 then I think this Board can act on it at the next
- 19 meeting.
- D.C. TOLLIVER: Okay.
- 21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Would that be timely?
- D.C. TOLLIVER: I will reach out to
- 23 Mr. Thomas as soon as I get back upstairs today.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Yes, sir.
- 25 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir. Through



- 1 the Chair, also you talked about sending the money
- 2 through another entity, too, so we definitely would
- 3 have to have something in writing before we could vote
- 4 on that. I think it's a great thing. We need all the
- 5 money and everything that we can use in training to
- 6 deal with domestic violence.
- 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Thank you. I think
- 8 Deputy Chief Tolliver wants to speak to that issue,
- 9 too.
- 10 D.C. TOLLIVER: Thank you. Again, Second
- 11 Deputy Chief Tolliver. We're going to talk to the
- 12 Sergeant when we leave this meeting, but we want to
- make sure we have our internal processes in place when
- 14 it comes to accepting funds for any projects. So we
- will make sure that we do that and do our due diligence
- 16 before we commit the City to anything.
- 17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I appreciate that. Okay.
- 18 Any other questions, concerns? Thank you. Getting
- 19 back to any questions concerning in reference to Deputy
- 20 Chief Hall's report, remarks, comments?
- D.C. HALL: I do have one thing.
- 22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.
- D.C. HALL: I just want to announce we do
- 24 have another candidate graduation scheduled for
- 25 tomorrow. We have approximately 23 graduates,



- 1 23 graduates graduating from the Detroit Police Academy
- 2 tomorrow, 10:00 a.m.
- 3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Where?
- D.C. HALL: At Greater Grace in the chapel.
- 5 It's a smaller graduation this time, so it will be in
- 6 chapel.
- 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. I plan on being
- 8 there. Perhaps other Commissioners will be joining us.
- 9 So we're looking forward to that. We had a chance to
- 10 interact with the class prior to while they were in the
- 11 academy, the Chief Investigator, the Board Secretary
- 12 and the Board Attorney, and we had a good hour
- discussion, so that was very rewarding in terms of
- 14 enlightenment in reference to the Board, duties and
- 15 responsibility. Thank you.
- D.C. HALL: We're looking forward to you guys
- 17 tomorrow.
- 18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Are you sure?
- D.C. HALL: Absolutely.
- 20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Standing Committee
- 21 Reports, any Standing Committee Reports at this time?
- 22 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Pardon me. Through
- 23 the Chair, for the personnel committee, I just have a
- 24 question pertaining to personnel to the Office of the
- 25 Chief Investigator, that's Officer Drake.



- 1 Two issues: One, in terms of the disposition
- of the complaints that are filed, are the citizens
- 3 getting letters once the case has been closed and
- 4 there's a disposition?
- 5 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: Yes, they are. They
- 6 received it. It is not, though, within that 90-day
- 7 period of time. After the case is closed of course as
- 8 you know, Commissioner -- I'm sorry, for the record,
- 9 Pamela Davis-Drake, Chief Investigator, it has to go
- 10 through a process.
- It has to go through the Board for review and
- 12 then it also has to go to the Office of the Chief for
- 13 review. Between the time that it actually gets back to
- 14 the Office of the Chief Investigator from the Board to
- 15 the time that it actually goes to the Chief's Office is
- 16 when we send out those letters, so that would be, the
- 17 Board has up to 45 days to review the case after that
- 18 90th day, so within that timeframe they do receive
- 19 letters.
- 20 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Okay. Could you
- 21 check and make sure that all of them are sent out
- 22 because I got a call from one of my eastside
- 23 constituents. Also, too, I have a couple resumés here.
- 24 Where are we on the hiring or interviewing, I'm sorry,
- 25 the Investigators?



- 1 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: We just closed out the
- 2 application process. It is online. And in order to be
- 3 eligible, all applicants have to go online and complete
- 4 the application process and then upload their resumé,
- 5 and that ended this past Friday.
- 6 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: There was a timeline
- 7 for that?
- 8 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: There was a timeline, yes,
- 9 sir.
- 10 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Okay. Thank you very
- 11 much.
- 12 C.I. DAVIS-DRAKE: You're quite welcome.
- 13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any other committee
- 14 reports? If not, we move to Item Number 11 as far as
- 15 New Business. And I just want to make you aware that
- 16 Commissioner Donnell White is not going to be with the
- 17 us the next 30 days. He's participating in a
- 18 fellowship program, the Marshall Memorial, the German
- 19 Marshall Fund of the United State of America. It's a
- 20 nonpartisan, nonprofit that works on strengthening
- 21 transatlantic cooperation on regional, national, global
- 22 challenges and opportunities in the spirit of the
- 23 Marshall Plan. Is this founded in 1982. There was an
- 24 elected process is terms of your resumé, interview.
- 25 So this is an excellent opportunity for



- 1 someone from Detroit, for someone who's involved with
- 2 Civil Rights and someone from the Board of Police
- 3 Commissioners to participate. So he's going to be
- 4 traveling in that international setting. We wish him
- 5 God speed, God blessing. And I think this for a young
- 6 person on the rise, and I'm looking forward for him
- 7 reporting back to the City and also to this Body in
- 8 terms of I think it's an honor and a privilege.
- 9 So I just want to commend him for an
- 10 undertaking of this nature because it's rather unique.
- 11 If you want to know more about Marshall Memorial
- 12 Fellowship, I'm pretty sure you can go online and you
- 13 get an overview in terms of the nature of this
- 14 particular involvement that Donnell White has
- 15 undertaken. So I just want to share with that you. So
- let's give the brother a round of applause.
- 17 (Applause.)
- 18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: So I think we might get a
- 19 couple emails. I think he's leaving tomorrow.
- 20 As far as I just want to report out to
- 21 briefly in our last meeting we made an announcement
- 22 that we would have opportunity to meet with the Mayor,
- 23 Mayor Duggan, that took place on Tuesday morning.
- I just going to give you some brief --
- 25 because I haven't had an opportunity to talk with the



- 1 Board members yet, I'll just give you some brief
- 2 oversight. I thought the meeting was healthy. I think
- 3 it was informative. The Mayor's only been in charge of
- 4 the Police Department a week and a half, maybe two
- 5 weeks, and I think he's met with Chief Craig, he's met
- 6 with us. We're looking for a closer alliance in terms
- 7 of communication gaps that is there.
- 8 But I think there are some strong differences
- 9 in reference to the Charter and we'll be weighing in on
- 10 that issue, so if we travel this path which is all
- 11 about what's good for the City of Detroit. I think
- 12 that's the role that this Commission has played
- 13 especially with the Charter changing in 2012 from
- 14 appointed to elected seven, that was a major change.
- 15 If we look at the issues that are facing us
- in this county, for instance, tomorrow night at
- 17 Hartford Memorial Baptist Church they are holding the
- 18 Annual Social Justice Conference and the families of
- 19 Trayvon Martin and Michael Brown will be represented by
- 20 Attorney Benjamin Crump. This is an issue in the
- 21 forefront in reference to what has transpired.
- So I know I will be in attendance at this
- 23 particular forum because it's somewhat timely. So when
- 24 we talk about overview and oversight, then we also have
- 25 to talk about the people.



- I know what the powers that be want to be
- 2 always in terms of power, you know. But I know that
- 3 people spoke loud and clear in 2012 in terms of
- 4 changing that. I understand the judge ruling. So we
- 5 are moving forward to dealing with the issue.
- I know the Mayor has the best interest of the
- 7 City, Council has the best interest of the City, but
- 8 this Board also has the best interest of the City.
- 9 When we look at oversight, as a former police
- 10 officer, I understand the pro and cons of police work
- 11 across this county because I was involved, and you look
- 12 at what's happening. Young people they have a whole
- 13 lot of concerns. They're not as patient as our
- 14 generation or my generation.
- Give you instance, there was a forum in
- 16 Ferguson, last weekend they protested and the young
- 17 people turn it backed on NAACP and other Civil Rights
- 18 leaders because as you look at going back to Civil
- 19 Rights, not only in this country but it also took place
- 20 in South African, it's the young people that galvanized
- 21 to change the whole movement.
- So we have to be very sensitive in terms of
- 23 police interaction with the community. If you don't
- 24 understand that then something -- as African American,
- 25 especially other minorities, you have to understand the



- 1 nature of policing in America historically. That's why
- 2 as a person who worked with this Department 32 years
- 3 and I advocated from day one because I witnessed in
- 4 terms of certain behavior and conduct. Overall we have
- 5 great Police Officers, we have a great Police Chief.
- But as you well know back in 2002, Mayor
- 7 Archer called in the Justice Department in reference to
- 8 what was happening in the City of Detroit with the
- 9 Detroit Police Department.
- 10 And I looked at that in terms of where did we
- 11 go wrong with a predominant African American Police
- 12 Department, where did we go wrong with predominant
- 13 African American -- and consistently with a African
- 14 American Police Chief, but something went wrong and we
- 15 spent eleven years. And all the money that we spent we
- 16 could have been providing police service. But thank
- 17 God, we are a better Police Department now.
- And there's some instance where people said
- 19 the Commissioners failed. I agree with you. They was
- 20 not due diligent. They were not due diligence. But
- 21 they were all appointees of the Mayor. All appointees
- of the Mayor from '74 all the way up to last year, they
- 23 was all appointees of the Mayor.
- So this is not the case in this day and age,
- 25 so that's why we are going to be engaging in terms of



- 1 bringing those issues out. This is an issue of public
- 2 safety in this country as we understand as it relates
- 3 to Police Departments across this country.
- 4 Detroit is not unique. You can be status
- 5 quo, stay status quo, but there's a movement, there's a
- 6 movement. Everybody's taping stuff, everybody's -- the
- 7 network is so fast now it's amazing and you just take
- 8 one spark. So that's why we must be engaging, we must
- 9 be concerned, we must be compassionate to make sure it
- 10 is not about the Police Chief. It is not about the
- 11 Mayor. It's about the people who want justice and
- 12 that's why they're standing up.
- And so we have a role. And the people spoke.
- 14 So when you make those changes, I just want to caution
- 15 you that the people are aware and that movement is
- 16 moving. So we must be in-kind to address those
- 17 concerns. And that's what this Board is all about.
- 18 That is my understanding and that is my platform.
- As long as I'm standing, I'm going to stand
- 20 up for the people in the City of Detroit and the people
- 21 in this county. So I just want to share that with you.
- 22 Thank you.
- 23 Any other New Business or Old Business?
- 24 Commissioners, any other comments? If not, we moved
- 25 right into Announcements. On Thursday, October the



- 1 23rd, the Board will meet right here at Headquarters,
- 2 Public Safety Building at 3:00.
- Now, to the people we have in the audience it
- 4 is your opportunity to speak for two minutes, identify
- 5 yourself and be respectful, and we appreciate you
- 6 coming out.
- 7 MS. PANNELL: Good afternoon, Sharon Pannell.
- 8 I just want to know what time was that forum at
- 9 Hartford?
- 10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's at 5:30. If you get
- 11 there early at 5:00 they're providing pizza because
- 12 they're trying to encourage a whole lot of young people
- 13 to come out. The doors open at 5:00 for a pizza meal.
- 14 The panel's going to be 5:30, and at 6:30, I think
- 15 Attorney Benjamin Crump is speaking at 7:00.
- MS. PANNELL: Do you know which sanctuary
- 17 it's going to be in?
- 18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's going to be in the
- 19 main sanctuary, ma'am. Thank you. Yes, sir.
- MR. MAYFIELD: Good afternoon, my name is
- 21 Roscoe Mayfield. I am concerned about there was a news
- 22 story about the Police not responding to a lady's
- 23 request for police service. She had found a weapon.
- 24 And I don't know if the story is true or not. But she
- 25 showed the weapon on the news and that she has been for



- 1 six months trying to get the Police to come out to her
- 2 house to recover this weapon. She said she talked to
- 3 Police Officers to recover this weapon. They told her,
- 4 come in bring the weapon into the station and they
- 5 would recover it.
- 6 She didn't want to bring the weapon because
- 7 she felt that she would get stopped out there and get
- 8 arrested for carrying it.
- 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: So this is a news story?
- MR. MAYFIELD: Yes, sir.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: TV, radio?
- MR. MAYFIELD: TV. They showed the weapon in
- 13 a plastic bag.
- D.C. HALL: Through the Chair, I'm sorry, are
- 15 you finished? I didn't want to interrupt you.
- MR. MAYFIELD: One more thing. I think the
- 17 Department is not providing enough service. I was
- 18 talking to an elderly lady at the Farmers Market and
- 19 she said the same thing, she had called for the police,
- 20 but I don't want to get into what she was concerned
- 21 about. She said she felt it was an emergency but they
- 22 never responded.
- 23 I think that the Police is -- and I think
- 24 that the Police Department is not providing enough
- 25 service to the citizens of the City, you know, things



- 1 like that. It looks bad for citizens and what happens
- 2 people start taking matters in their own hands and we
- 3 don't want to have that happen.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Let the Deputy
- 5 Chief respond.
- D.C. HALL: Through the Chair, there was some
- 7 investigation into that. Actually I had hands-on in
- 8 that. We found that we cannot find a time where she
- 9 called 911 for a police car, nor -- and there was also
- 10 the allegations that she went to a police station, she
- 11 could not remember which police station that she went
- 12 to and no one would take the gun from her. Could not
- 13 verify that at all.
- 14 Two nights ago when they broke the story and
- 15 gave me the information I sent a police unit over to
- 16 recover that weapon. That weapon has been recovered.
- I just want to say everything that people
- 18 report in the news we have to remember that there is
- 19 sometimes no truth to it.
- MR. MAYFIELD: That's why I made that
- 21 comment.
- D.C. HALL: I'm not accusing her of anything
- 23 but we couldn't find where she had ever called the
- 24 Police. And I can assure you, I've been in law
- 25 enforcement for fifteen years and if someone brings a



- 1 gun to a police station and no one's going to take it
- 2 away from them, if they're trying to give it to us, it
- 3 doesn't even make sense.
- 4 So what I would say is that you're a retired
- 5 lieutenant. You know that the people on this Police
- 6 Department are some of the hardest working Police
- 7 Officers, Supervisors, this side of the Mississippi.
- 8 So we do a great job. Often times we don't always get
- 9 the reward from that, and not that we are looking for
- 10 it.
- But I do you want you to know that we have
- 12 been diligent into looking into that problem and it was
- 13 rectified the second that she made the comment.
- But as I said before, we could not verified
- 15 that she had ever called the police, nor has she
- 16 brought it because she couldn't even remember which
- 17 precinct, which station.
- 18 MR. MAYFIELD: -- there was a shooting.
- 19 Somebody got shot something and it could have been news
- 20 media. I know the news media they like to --
- 21 D.C. HALL: Sensationalize. If it bleeds
- 22 it's leads. We understand that. And right now that
- 23 weapon has been recovered and it's going to be tested
- 24 and if it's found to have been used in any crime, in
- 25 the commission of any crime we'll investigate that, as



- 1 well. So we are on top of it.
- 2 MR. MAYFIELD: Very good.
- 3 COMMISSIONER MOORE: How did that come in
- 4 contact with the Police Department? Did the media
- 5 contact the Police?
- D.C. HALL: The media contacted our PIO.
- 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I agree with you, Deputy
- 8 Chief, but I disagree when you talk about west. We're
- 9 probably east of the Mississippi, too.
- 10 D.C. HALL: Yes, sir.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We have the hardest
- 12 working Officers in City, in the State. And I just
- 13 know that the response time -- you can't give everybody
- 14 hundred percent, but overall it's drastically improved
- 15 because we are engaged and we are getting that type of
- 16 feedback. People are really pleased in terms of night
- 17 and day in terms of the police service in City of
- 18 Detroit.
- 19 D.C. HALL: Thank you.
- 20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Any other comments?
- 21 Yes, sir.
- MR. DEMOSKI: How are you? Good afternoon,
- 23 Board.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Good afternoon, sir.
- MR. DEMOSKI: My name is Sam Demoski. We're



- 1 a local company in the City of Detroit. Like I
- 2 mentioned to you two weeks ago, we're an equipment
- 3 supplier for the Police Department as far as
- 4 radio/video and installer. We've been servicing the
- 5 community of Detroit since 2008 on their police car
- 6 outfits.
- And it's just a rumor. We mean no harm. The
- 8 Police Department of the City of Detroit is one of our
- 9 best customers. It's just a rumor that the City is
- 10 purchasing 110 Chargers and they may be going outside
- 11 the City to get this equipment installed.
- 12 And we're not sure, but in this case if this
- 13 happens it would be a devastating blow to our company.
- 14 We have two facilities located 8100 West McNichols,
- 15 3,600 square feet, the other facility is located across
- 16 the street from Mumford High School which is about
- 17 32,000 square feet.
- The vehicles get housed within the City
- 19 within our closed in buildings. We've always
- 20 engineered great products for these cars, skids plates,
- 21 communication lockdown drawers, so on and so forth.
- We came to you guys about two weeks ago.
- 23 Didn't get any explanation. We had a small meeting
- 24 with Deputy Chief White. He indicated that he'd get
- 25 back with us. No one has contacted us.



- 1 We need some explanations. And if there's
- 2 any wrongdoing or something -- as they may be looking
- 3 for we're here to take care of the needs. We're a
- 4 tax-based business. We're a taxpayer in the City. We
- 5 employ within the City and we live in the City.
- 6 So if there's anything you guys can do,
- 7 please check into it. It's rather important because
- 8 like anything if other communities can come to us,
- 9 thirty other communities, and we're good for them, I
- 10 think we should be able to work our difference with the
- 11 City of Detroit and move forward on these projects.
- 12 That's it.
- 13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, as you well know,
- 14 Assistant Chief White was here, he responded publicly
- and I think he met with you privately. We do not have
- 16 any impact on that particular issue and I don't know
- 17 all the interworking how it works. You have every
- 18 right to speak to this Body in that two minutes for
- 19 those concerns. I'm hoping that you get some answers,
- 20 some type of relief.
- 21 But we have no bearing on that. But I hear
- 22 you. I'm pretty sure it's nothing -- you know, I think
- 23 Assistant Chief White was dealing with that issue. He
- 24 spoke clearly to that issue. Now, if you want to see
- 25 the Deputy Chief afterwards. But he has the authority



- 1 to responded to that.
- 2 And I don't know about lobbying as far, you
- 3 know, contracts with the Council and the powers that
- 4 be, but I would hope that you pursue those endeavors to
- 5 try to get some type of response. But this Body we
- 6 have no bearing on that. But you're always welcome to
- 7 say what you want to say in that two minutes. But I'm
- 8 hoping you get some type of satisfaction in terms of
- 9 your concern.
- MR. DEMOSKI: I truly appreciate that a great
- 11 deal. I thank each and everyone of you. The other
- 12 thing is, tomorrow is the graduating class. We're only
- 13 two miles from that facility. You're always welcome to
- 14 come in and take a look at the great work that's
- 15 happening in our City.
- We're a great supplier for other communities
- 17 like the Sheriff Department, Macomb, and others and
- 18 other. I just don't want to ramble. I'd love for you
- 19 guys to come in and take a look at a great job you have
- 20 within the City.
- 21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir.
- MR. DEMOSKI: Thank you, each any everyone of
- 23 you.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Okay. Thank
- any other comments from the audience? Yes.



- 1 MS. CLEMENS: First time.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Welcome, welcome.
- 3 MS. CLEMENS: I have a concern.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Please give your name,
- 5 please.
- 6 MS. CLEMENS: Miss Adrian Clemens. I coming
- 7 here because well, today I heard about the domestic
- 8 violence and I've heard about the justice system, the
- 9 NAACP.
- I'm here because I'm a single mom and I have
- 11 a son that's incarcerated. With the technology that we
- 12 have I want to know how is that no one is standing up
- for a young man that's wrongfully incarcerated?
- I want to know how is it that I have a son
- 15 that's been in prison for two and a half years already
- 16 with no DNA on a rape kit. That there's no -- within
- 17 that victim they have someone else's DNA in this case.
- 18 I have talked to too many people, the chief
- 19 investigator, everyone just tells me, good luck.
- But my son has been in prison for two and a
- 21 half years. My mom, my sister, myself have been
- 22 medical issues because of this and we see that there's
- 23 no help with the technology that we have that my son is
- 24 incarcerated. And I have paperwork that clearly states
- 25 that there's no DNA to tie my son to this lady, but



- 1 there's someone else's DNA.
- Not only that but how can he be in two places
- 3 at one time? If there's blood all over the place but
- 4 when the police picks him up it states that there's no
- 5 blood, there was no scars, no scratches. But the
- 6 alleged victim says that. He stated someone put
- 7 something in his drink.
- 8 This happened two years ago. I was on the
- 9 news two years ago. I'm hear to say it again that my
- 10 son was drugged, put in this alleged victim's bed. And
- 11 I have tried to talk to Chief of Police. Everyone just
- 12 says, good luck. But who's going to stand up for
- 13 people that's wrongfully incarcerated.
- I seen on the news how they're trying to do
- 15 this thing about the rape kit that they haven't gotten
- 16 to yet but there's clearly rape kits. Well, my son's
- 17 case it clearly states that there is no DNA, that
- 18 there's someone's DNA. And there's no help.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. You're
- 20 request is you're trying to get DNA processed for this
- 21 particular case with the prosecutor's office?
- MS. CLEMENS: My question is how is it that,
- 23 how can it be done, how can -- it seems like the
- 24 prosecutors run the courtroom. I want to know how is
- 25 that someone or when someone is charged with rape how



- 1 is that they're incarcerated but there's clearly no DNA
- 2 and there is no -- on the rape kits when it says on the
- 3 rape kit it says there's no sign, there's no entry. I
- 4 want to know how can I pay a lawyer \$11,000 of my money
- 5 and I come to court and he says I want to be taken off
- 6 this case but he has no reason, but he says to the
- 7 judge, if they want to keep me, they're stupid. I have
- 8 never been so disrespected and --
- 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay, ma'am. I think we
- 10 get the point. I don't know any Commissioner want to
- 11 weigh in on it. But primarily I think that it's in the
- 12 realm you working through attorneys and with the
- 13 prosecutor's officer, whatever, I can't really legally
- 14 advise you. And I won't say, good luck. But I don't
- 15 know if anyone here could assist you in that endeavor
- 16 perhaps? Yes, ma'am.
- D.C. HALL: See me afterwards, I'll have
- 18 someone to talk to you. Basically from a Department
- 19 standpoint all we do is we gather the evidence.
- 20 Obviously, this has been adjudicated in court of law
- 21 and a decision has been made. But see me afterwards
- 22 and we'll try and point you in the right direction.
- 23 I'm not going to guarantee you anything, but we'll
- 24 assist you, if we can.
- MS. CLEMENS: And I might have gotten off on



- 1 the wrong foot because actually I wanted to start with
- 2 the Police Officers because I wanted to know what's the
- 3 job of the Chief of Police when they're over cases?
- 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Ma'am, why don't we
- 5 have -- comments.
- 6 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Ma'am, also in terms
- of you probably should start with the prosecutor's
- 8 office. But also, too, they're usually in every state
- 9 there's an innocence project. I don't know if you've
- 10 reached out to any of those. Okay. You may want to
- 11 look them up because they take on cases historically
- 12 across this country in terms of those who have perhaps
- 13 been wrongfully convicted and they do all kind work in
- 14 terms of DNA and they open up, they'll investigate a
- 15 case from their perspective.
- MS. CLEMENS: With the technology we have,
- 17 how long are we going to allow people to spend five,
- 18 ten, fifteen years in prison and say, oh, we're sorry.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ma'am, we hear you. We
- 20 are concerned.
- 21 Any other comments from the audience at this
- 22 time? If not, we are at the point of adjourning. And
- 23 I just want to say that the next meeting's here on
- October the 23rd, right here at Public Safety
- 25 Headquarters at 3:00 p.m.



10/16/2014

	Page 41
1	And thank you for coming out this afternoon.
2	And I see another retired Lieutenant, Roy MacAlister in
3	our audience. Good to see you, sir.
4	MR. MACALISTER: Thank you, sir.
5	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioners, what is
6	your pleasure in reference to adjournment?
7	COMMISSIONER BYRD: So move.
8	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.
9	CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly moved
10	and supported. Those in favor?
11	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
12	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed? Motion
13	carried. We are adjourned. Thank you and have a great
14	afternoon.
15	(The hearing concluded at 3:57 p.m.)
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



1	CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
2	
3	
4	STATE OF MICHIGAN)
5) SS
6	COUNTY OF WAYNE)
7	
8	I, Elizabeth Koller, hereby certify
9	that I reported stenographically the foregoing
10	proceedings and at the time and place hereinbefore set
11	forth; that thereafter the same was reduced to computer
12	transcription under my supervision; and that this is a
13	full, true, complete and correct transcription of said
14	proceedings.
15	
16	Acalle 9 a. Z
17	Elizabeth Koller
18	Elizabeth Koller, CSR 7042,
19	Notary Public,
20	Wayne County, Michigan
21	My Commission expires: June 1, 2018
22	
23	
24	
25	



8:9

arrested 30:8

_
A
able 7:21 11:25
18:11,17,22
25.10
35:10
Absolutely 21:19
academy 21:1,11
accept 18:3
acceptance 10:3
acceptance 10:3
accepting 20:14
Accounting 9:7
9:10
accounts 9:7,12
9:13
accusing 31:22
act 19:18
action 19:12
activities 18:23
actual 15:16
<pre>addition 10:2</pre>
14:1
additional $14:2$
15 : 11
address 6:22
28:16
adjourned 41:13
adjourning 40:22
adjournment 41:6
adjudicated
adjudicated 39:20
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13
adjudicated 39:20
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 29:7,20
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 29:7,20 33:22,24 41:1
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 29:7,20 33:22,24 41:1 41:14
adjudicated 39:20 administer 13:13 18:16 administers 9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 29:7,20 33:22,24 41:1 41:14
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 29:7,20 33:22,24 41:1 41:14 age 27:24
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 29:7,20 33:22,24 41:1 41:14 age 27:24 agenda 5:24,25
adjudicated 39:20 administer13:13 18:16 administers9:19 Administration 9:6 Adrian 37:6 advise 39:14 advocacy 17:22 18:20 advocated 27:3 African 26:20,24 27:11,13,13 afternoon 3:4,5 4:21 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 29:7,20 33:22,24 41:1 41:14 age 27:24

31:14 34:2,22
38:8,9
agree 27:19 33:7 agreement 10:1
Alan 5:16
Alia 5:3,4
Aliyah 5:14
allegations
31:10
alleged 38:6,10
alliance 25:6
allocated 15:18
allow 40:17
allowable 13:24
allowing 14:5
amazing 28:7
America 23:19
27:1 American 26:24
27:11,13,14
announce 20:23
announcement
16:4 24:21
Announcements
28:25
annual 13:22
25:18
25:18 answer 14:8
25:18 answer 14:8 answers 35:19
25:18 answer 14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13
25:18 answer 14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1
25:18 answer 14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21
25:18 answer 14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5 36:10
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5 36:10
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5 36:10
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5 36:10 approval 5:24 11:2,3,16 18:3 approved 11:25
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5 36:10 approval 5:24 11:2,3,16 18:3 approved 11:25 approximately
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5 36:10 approval 5:24 11:2,3,16 18:3 approved 11:25 approximately 20:25 Archer 27:7
25:18 answer14:8 answers 35:19 Anthony 2:9 3:14 3:16,17,22,25 4:3,6,9 5:11 5:13 APPEARANCES 2:1 applause 24:16 24:17 applicants 23:3 application 16:12 23:2,4 appointed 25:14 appointees 27:21 27:21,23 appreciate 16:18 20:17 29:5 36:10 approval 5:24 11:2,3,16 18:3 approved 11:25 approximately

<pre>arrests 7:10,11 asked 3:18 4:10</pre>
asked 3:18 4:10
assist 39:15,24
Assistant 35:14
35:23
assure 31:24
attendance 25:22
Attorney 5:14 21:12 25:20
29:15
attorneys 39:12
audience 3:5
29:3 36:25
40:21 41:3
audit 13:22,22
authority 35:25
authorization
11:16,22
Avenue 1:16
award 11:6 12:6
12:6 18:9
awards 10:20
11:17 13:13 aware 15:14
16:11 23:15
28:15
awareness 17:21
awareness 1 / : Z 1
Aye 6:6,17 41:11
Aye 6:6,17 41:11
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B 19:16
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B 19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B 19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17
B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24 12:3,4
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24 12:3,4 Baptist 25:17
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24 12:3,4 Baptist 25:17 basically 19:13
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24 12:3,4 Baptist 25:17 basically 19:13 39:18
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24 12:3,4 Baptist 25:17 basically 19:13 39:18 basis 13:14
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24 12:3,4 Baptist 25:17 basically 19:13 39:18 basis 13:14 bearing 35:21
Aye 6:6,17 41:11 a.m 21:2 B B19:16 back 15:20 19:23 20:19 22:13 24:7 26:18 27:6 34:25 backed 26:17 bad 31:1 bag 30:13 balances 10:24 12:3,4 Baptist 25:17 basically 19:13 39:18 basis 13:14

began 12:1

begun 10:18 11:4

behavior 27:4 believe 7:18 15:23 Bell 2:2 3:4,6,8 4:14,18 5:6,9 5:20,23 6:4,7 6:15,18 7:1 12:16 14:9 15:4 16:17,20 17:1,5,9 19:1 19:10,21,24 20:7,17,22 21:3,7,18,20 23:13 24:18 29:10,18 30:9 30:11 31:4 33:7,11,20,24 35:13 36:21,24 37:2,4 38:19 39:9 40:4,19 41:5,9,12 Benjamin 25:20 29:15 best 8:24 26:6,7 26:8 34:9 **better** 27:17 **Bettison** 16:25 **bleeds** 32:21 blessing 24:5 **blood** 38:3,5 **blow** 34:13 board1:2 3:7,13 3:17 5:12,15 7:22 12:1,8 19:13,18 21:11 21:12,14 22:11 22:14,17 24:2 25:1 26:8 28:17 29:1 33:23 **Body** 16:16 24:7 35:18 36:5 **brief** 6:20 12:2 24:24 25:1 **briefly** 24:21 bring 30:4,6 bringing 28:1 **brings** 31:25 **broke** 31:14 **brother** 24:16 **brought** 32:16 Brown 25:19

budget 4:22 5:3 30:14 31:6 22:2 30:25 36:25 40:5,21 5:4,7 8:19 9:5 CHAIRPERSON 2:2 31:1 commission 3:8 9:8,14,15 11:8 3:4,6 4:14,18 City 7:17 8:8,24 5:12 25:12 5:6,9,20,23 9:17 11:10,14 32:25 42:21 11:9,19,20 **budgets** 13:12 6:4,7,15,18 12:24 13:5,9 Commissioner 2:3 building 9:24 7:1 12:16 14:9 13:21 16:3 2:4,5,6,7,8 29:2 15:4 16:17,20 18:9,10 20:16 3:18,19,21,22 17:1,5,9 19:21 24:7 25:11 3:24,25 4:2,3 buildings 34:19 26:7,7,8 27:8 **Burton** 2:4 3:20 19:24 20:7,17 4:5,6,8,9,10 3:21 20:22 21:3,7 28:20 30:25 6:2,3,13,14 business 3:11 21:18,20 23:13 33:12,17 34:1 14:11,23 15:3 5:24 6:9 23:15 24:18 29:10,18 34:8,9,11,18 15:5,14 16:2 16:13 17:2,4 28:23,23 35:4 30:9,11 31:4 35:4,5,5,11 Byrd 2:7 3:23,24 33:7,11,20,24 36:15,20 19:1,10,25 6:3,14 41:7 21:22 22:8,20 City's 9:2, 13, 15 35:13 36:21,24 Civil 24:2 26:17 23:6,10,16 37:2,4 38:19 С 33:3 39:10 39:9 40:4,19 26:18 calendar 14:25 41:5,9,12 **class** 21:10 40:6 41:7,8 36:12 call 3:15 22:22 challenge 11:18 Commissioners called 27:7 challenges 23:22 **clear** 26:3 1:2 3:14 4:13 30:19 31:9,23 **chance** 21:9 clearances 12:9 5:25 6:6,17 8:17 12:17,18 32:15 **change** 13:18 **clearly** 35:24 candidate 20:24 14:21 25:14 37:24 38:16,17 12:21 14:9 **car** 31:9 34:5 26:21 39:1 17:11 21:8 24:3 27:19 care 35:3 **changed** 17:23 **Clemens** 37:1,3,6 carried 6:8,19 changes 28:14 37:6 38:22 28:24 41:5,11 39:25 40:16 41:13 changing 25:13 **commit** 20:16 committee 21:20**carry** 18:23 26:4 **close** 16:9 carrying 30:8 **chapel** 21:4,6 **closed** 10:17 21:21,23 23:13 22:3,7 23:1 cars 34:20 charge 8:19 communication Carter 3:18 17:13 25:3 34:19 25:7 34:21 case 14:16 19:10 charged 38:25 **closely** 9:10,11 communities 35:8 22:3,7,17 Chargers 34:10 9:13,15 35:9 36:16 27:24 34:12 **chart** 13:1 closer 25:6 community 26:23 37:17 38:17,21 **Charter** 25:9,13 cocaine 7:11 34:5 39:6 40:15 **check** 22:21 35:7 collaborating company 34:1,13 **chief** 2:10 4:15 compassionate cases 40:3,11 13:11 4:18,22 5:16 **come** 12:14 29:13 **cash** 10:3 28:9 categories 11:24 8:18 15:6 30:1,4 33:3 complaints 22:2 **caution** 28:14 16:20,23 20:8 35:8 36:14,19 complete 23:3 **Celia** 16:23 20:11,20 21:11 39:5 42:13 centralized 9:6 21:25 22:9,12 comes 20:14 completes 5:19 13:6,8 22:14 25:5 coming 15:9 16:4 compliance 13:11 27:5,14 28:10 16:11 29:6 certain 10:10 13:18,20 31:5 33:8 37:6 41:1 computer 42:11 27:4 **CERTIFICATE** 42:1 34:24 35:14,23 Commander 16:24 concern 36:9 certify 42:8 35:25 37:18 Commencing 1:1937:3 38:11 40:3 **CFO** 14:17 commend 24:9concerned 28:9 Chief's 22:15 **comment** 31:21 **chair** 3:8,16 29:21 30:20 32:13 4:12 7:4 14:11 chilly 3:9 40:20 15:5 17:2,7 **Church** 25:17 comments 20:20 concerning 20:19

28:24 33:20

concerns 11:11

citizens 8:7

20:1 21:23

11:19 14:10 16:18 20:18 26:13 28:17 35:19 concluded 41:15 conduct 27:4 conference 16:3 16:6 25:18 confirmed 14:25 confiscated 7:14 conflict 17:24 18:8
cons 26:10
consistently
27:13 constantly 7:16 constituents 22:23
contact 33:4,5
contacted 33:6
34:25 contracts 4:24 4:25 5:1 6:24 8:14,15,21 9:9 9:16,19,22,23 9:24,25 12:8 36:3
contractual 10:9
conversation
18:4,6 convicted 40:13
cooperation
23:21
coordinates 9:21
<pre>copies 14:12 COPS 10:15 11:7 11:17 15:7,9 15:24 16:5,9 copy 19:6 core 13:10 Corration</pre>
17:16
corporations
<pre>correct 42:13 Council 11:11,14 12:10 26:7 36:3</pre>
country 26:19 28:2,3 40:12 county 11:4 25:16 26:11

28:21 42:	6	,	2	0	
couple 6:21					
10:23 16:	6				
22:23 24:	1	9			
course 22:7					
court 5:17	3	9	:	5	
39:20					
courtroom 3	8	:	2	4	
Craig 25:5	_				
Crawford 2:				:]	
4:2 15:5,				_	
16:2,13 1			2	5	
21:22 22: 23:6,10 4	<u>ک</u>	0	c		
23:6,10 4 created 13:		:	О		
crime 32:24		2	5		
Crump 25:20	′	_	J		
29:15					
CSR 42:18					
CSR-7042 1:	2.	1			
currency 7:					
current 10:					
13:23					
currently 1	0	:	1	9	
customer 18					
customers 3	4	:	9		
cut 11:16					
C.I 22:5 23	:	1	,	8	
23:12					

D

daily 13:14 data 13:15 date 10:16
Davis-Drake 5:15
22:5,9 23:1,8 23:12
day 8:4,5,6
22:18 27:3,24 33:17
days 22:17 23:17
deal 20:6 36:11
dealing 26:5
35:23
decision 39:21
decreased 11:10
DEDI 7:18
<pre>definitely 20:2</pre>
delay 12:2
delete 11:18
delivery 13:14
Demoski 33:22,25

9:11 13 17 27 30 33	rtmo	,12 ,22 6:9 25: ,9, 24 4:3	8: ,1 4 12 32 ,8 18	,22 11 5 3:1 ,17
depa		ent	s	
	:12			3
28				
11	19 9 :9 1	:20 3:1	, 2 7	
depe				
Depu				
4 : .	18,2 :13,	23 Τ Ω	:⊥ 15	8 • 6
16	:20,	23	17	:25
18	:3 2	0:8	, 1	1
20	:19	31:	4	
33	:73	4:2	4	
35 desc	25	ina	12	• 3
Detr	oit.	1 : 2	.1	. J 7
Detr 1:1 8:6 13 21	18 3	:1	7:	19
8:6	5 12	:24	1	3:5
13	:9,2	1 1	7:	19
21	:1 2 •11	4:⊥ 27•	Ω	a
2.8	:11 :4,2	0.3	3:	18
34	:1,5	,8	35	:11
deva	sta	tin	g	
	:13		∟ 1	1 . 0
deve diff				
diff				
dili				
	:20			
dili		t 27	:2	0
32 dili	:12	-1	7.	20
dire	.gem	c±y op 7	. 9	∠ ∪
	cti	J11 /		
	cti :16			
19 dire	:16 : ctl	39:	22	
19	:16 : ctl : :9	39: y 9:	22 16	2

18:4 disagree 33:8 discuss 9:2 discussion 19:1421:13 disposition 22:1 22:4 disrespected 39:8 District 7:19 Division 9:14**DNA** 37:16,17,25 38:1,17,18,20 39:1 40:14 **Doha** 4:24 doing 8:10 **DOJ** 12:9 domestic 4:2317:8,13,17,19 17:20 20:6 37:7 donations 10:3 Donnell 4:10 23:16 24:14 doors 29:13 Downtown 8:9 downward 7:9 **DPD** 18:22 **draft** 12:25 14:12,13 **drafted** 14:15 **Drake** 21:25 drastically 33:14 **drawers** 34:21 drink 38:7 drugged 38:10 **due** 20:15 27:20 27:20 **Duggan** 24:23 **duties** 21:14 **DV** 18:22 **D.C**4:17,21 5:4 5:8 6:25 7:3 8:12,16,18 12:19 15:12,20 16:8,15,19,23 17:7 19:4,20 19:22 20:10,21 20:23 21:4,16 21:19 30:14 31:6,22 32:21



33:16,10,19 39:17 D.D12:20,22 14:14,24 18:6 E E2:2,4 3:19 early 29:11 early 29:11 east 33:9 Eastern 7:19 eastside 22:22 elderly 30:18 elected 23:24 25:14 eleven 27:15 eligible 23:3 Elizabeth 1:21 5:17 42:8,18 else's 37:17 38:1 email17:15 19:5 19:5,9 emails 24:19 emergency 30:21 employ 35:5 19:5,9 emails 24:19 emergency 30:21 employ 35:5 19:25,9 emails 24:19 emergency 30:21 employ 35:5 19:25,17 endeavor 39:15 endeavors 36:4 ended 23:5 endeavors 36:4 ended 23:5 endeavors 36:4 ended 23:5 engaged 33:15 engaging 27:25 28:8 engineered 34:20 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 facilities 34:15 failed 27:2 final 14:14 finalized 14:13 find 14:2 31:8 31:23 finished 30:15 first 5:23 7:2 14:19 19:1 37:1 foot 40:1 five 17:3 40:17 foot 4		l	l	l
D.D.12:20,22				
E				
E excellent 23:25 excited 14:3 excused 3:18 east 33:9 excused 3:18 east 33:9 excused 3:18 elected 22:22 elderly 30:18 elected 23:24 expenditures 10:13, 21 13:25 expenditures 10:13, 21 13:25 expires 42:21 explain 10:23 explain 10:23 explain 10:23 explain 10:23 forcefront 25:17 42:8, 18 else 's 37:17 38:1 exclavation 23:18 expenditures 33:12 forcefront 25:21 forcegoing 42:9 extend 3:6 extend 3:6 extend 3:15 endeavors 36:4 ended 23:5 endeavor 39:15 endeav				
E 2:2,4 3:19 excited 14:3 excused 3:18 excused 3:13 explain 10:23 excused 3:15 excused	14:14,24 18:6			
E2:2, 4 3:19 early 29:11 east 33:9 Eastern 7:19 east side 22:22 elderly 30:18 elected 23:24 25:14 eleven 27:15 eliziabeth]:21 5:17 42:8, 18 else's 37:17 38:1 email 17:15 19:5 19:5, 9 emargency 30:21 employ 35:5 encourage 29:12 endeavor 36:4 ended 23:5 endeavor 36:4 ended 23:5 engaging 27:25 engaged 33:15 engaging 27:25 engaged 33:15 engineered 34:20 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 entities 10:5 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 entity 18:26 entity 18:26 entity 18:26 extend 33:16 feeral 16:5 entity 18:26 extend 33:16 feeral 16:5 entity 18:26 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 excited 14:3 find 14:2 31:8 find 14:2 31:4 find 14:2 31:8 find 14:2 31:4 find 14:2 31:8 find 14:2 31:4				
early 29:11 eact 33:9 4:11 31:23 G galvanized 26:20 galvanized 26:20 <th< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></th<>				
east 33:9 4:11 findings 13:22 finished 30:15 galvanized 26:20 game 8:3,4,10 gaps 25:7 east side 22:22 elderly 30:18 elected 23:24 expenditures 10:16 expires 42:21 explain 10:23 still explain 10:23 explain 10:23 still explain 10:23 explain 10:23 still explain 10:23 still explain 10:23 still exemail 17:15 19:5 lemail 17:15 19:5 lemail 17:15 19:5 lemail 24:19 emergency 30:21 extend 3:6 extension 11:2 extend 3:6 extension 11:2 endeavor 39:15 endeavors 36:4 ended 23:5 endeavors 36:4 ended 23:5 engaged 33:15 engaging 27:25 28:8 engineered 34:20 enlightenment 2:114 ensure 8:7 13:23 entities 10:5 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 expiral as a side and solutions 10:4, 8 17:21 18:20 entry 39:3 egeptially 12:6 22:13 26:25 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5 finished 30:15 first 5:23 6:23 game 8:3, 4, 10 gaps 25:7 gaps 25:7 gaps 25:7 gather 39:19 foot 40:1 foot				future 13:4
Eastern 7:19 eastside 22:22 elderly 30:18 elected 23:24				
eastside 22:22 ederly 3:18 elected 23:24				
elderly 30:18 elzeted 23:24				_
elected 23:24 10:13,21 13:25 37:1 gather 39:19 generation 26:14 25:14 expires 42:21 expires 42:21 five 17:3 40:17 generation 26:14 26:14 George 2:9 3:14 3:17 George 2:9 3:14 3:18 George 2:9 3:14 3:17 George 2:9 3:14 3:18 George 2:9 3:14 3:17 George 2:9 3:14 3:18 George 2:9 3:14 3:18 George 2:9 3:14 3:18 German 23:18 German 23:18 German 13:18 getting 20:18 22:3 33:15 German 19:7,8 22:23 33:13 23:14 24:12 Gormal 19:7,8 26:15 32:2 24:24 25:15 Gormal 19:7,8 26:15 32:2 42:21 Gorthal 9:13 Gorthal 9:13 33:13 37:4 Global 2:9 Gormal 19:7,8 26:15 32:2 42:11 </th <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>_ · ·</th>				_ · ·
25:14 expiration 10:16 Fiscal 5:5 8:20 generation 26:14 eleven 27:15 expires 42:21 9:5,5,6 26:14 eligible 23:3 explanation 12:3 five 17:3 40:17 George 2:9 3:14 5:17 42:8,18 esles's 37:17 38:1 foot 40:1 3:17 else's 37:17 38:1 forefront 25:21 gerting 20:18 email 17:15 19:5 extension 11:2 foregoing 42:9 give 8:14 24:16 emails 24:19 extension 11:2 formal 19:7,8 give 8:14 24:16 give 8:14 24:16 employ 35:5 encourage 29:12 F formal 19:17,8 goive 8:14 24:16 give 8:14 24:16 GM's 12:10 endeavors 36:4 10:2 facilitate 9:23 formal 19:13 goive 8:14 24:16 goive 3:15 enderocement facilitate 9:23 forunate 10:7 going 3:11 going 3:11 going 3:12 engaging 27:25 failed 27:19 24:6 26:5 35:11 going 3:11,13 going 3:11,13 engineered 34:20 fast 28:7 founded 23:23 going 3:11,13 going 3:11,13				
eleven 27:15 expires 42:21 explain 10:23 five 17:3 40:17 26:14 George 2:9 3:14 Elizabeth 1:21 34:23 explaination 12:3 3:17 6ct 40:1 3:17 3:17 6ct 40:1 3:17 6ct 40:1 3:17 6ct 40:1 5:17 42:8,18 8:10 9:5,5,6 6ct 40:1 7:00:40:1				_
eligible 23:3 explain 10:23 five 17:3 40:17 George 2:9 3:14 Elizabeth 1:21 34:23 explanation 12:3 foot 40:1 3:17 5:17 42:8,18 esplanation 2:3 foot 40:1 3:17 else's 37:17 explanations 35:1 foot 40:1 3:17 emsils 24:19 extend 3:6 forefront 25:21 give 8:14 24:16 22:3 33:15 give 8:14 24:16 24:24 25:1 22:3 33:15 give 8:14 24:16 24:24 25:1 22:24 33:15 give 8:14 24:16 24:24 25:1 22:3 33:15 give 8:14 24:16 24:24 25:1 22:3 33:15 give 8:14 24:16 24:24 25:1 22:3 33:13 7:4:24:16 24:24 25:1 26:15 32:2 32:24 33:13 37:4 42:11 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 29:8 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 26:15 32:2 27:11 26:15 32:2 27:11 26:15 32:2 27:11 26:15 32:2 27:11 26:15 32:2 27:17 27:18:2 27:11 26:15 32:2 27:11 26:15 32:2				_
Elizabeth1:21				
S:17 42:8,18	=			
else's 37:17 explanations 35:1 6 core front 25:21 getting 20:18 22:3 33:15 22:3 33:15 22:3 33:15 22:3 33:15 35:1 22:3 33:15 22:3 33:15 22:3 33:15 23:15 24:24:26 24:24:25:1 24:24:25:1 24:24:25:1 26:15 32:2 22:3 33:15 24:24:25:1 26:15 32:2 23:13 37:4 24:24 25:1 26:15 32:2<		_		
38:1 amail17:15 19:5 35:1 extend3:6 forefront 25:21 give 8:14 24:16 24:24 25:1 gord 13:12 24:24 25:1 gord 13:12 24:24 25:1 gord 13:13 24:24:12 global 23:21 33:13 37:4 global 23:21 35:11 global 23:21 global 23:21 36:13 15:1,20 22:9 22:11,12 20:11 21:11 26:15 29:8 22:11,12 23:3 26:15 29:8 22:11,12 23:13 24:12 27:11,12 23:13 24:12 27:11,12 20:21 21:12 20:21 21:14 20:22:3 35:11 20:21 </th <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>				
email 17:15 19:5 extend 3:6 foregoing 42:9 give 8:14 24:16 24:24 25:1 24:16 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 24:24 25:1 26:15 32:2 33:13 37:4 global 23:21 GM's 12:10 go 6:21 11:21 Gm 42:11 GM's 12:10 go 6:21 11:21 Gm 25:23 15:1, 20 22:9 22:11, 12 23:3 26:15 29:8 26:15 29:8 26:15 29:8 22:11, 12 23:3 24:12 27:11, 12 23:13 37:4 24:12 27:11, 12 26:15 29:8 22:11, 12 23:3 26:15 29:8 27:17 29:11 26:15 29:8 27:17 29:13 27:17 29:13 27:21 29:11 27:		_		
Part				
emails 24:19 external 18:12 formally 19:13 26:15 32:2 employ 35:5 encourage 29:12 facilitate 9:23 forth 34:21 global 23:21 endeavor 39:15 facilitate 9:23 forth 34:21 global 23:21 endeavors 36:4 facilitate 9:23 fortunate 10:7 go 6:21 11:21 ended 23:5 facilities 34:14 forward 3::1 15:1,20 22:9 enforcement facility 34:15 forward 3::1 15:1,20 22:9 28:8 facing 25:15 forward 3::1 goal 13::21 engaging 27:25 failed 27:19 24:6 26:5 goal 13::21 gonineered 34:20 families 25:18 found 29:23 31:8 found 29:23 31:8 found 29:23 31:8 found 29:23 31:8 found 23:23 found 23:21 found 23:23 fo				
emergency 30:21 18:24 former 26:9 33:13 37:4 global 23:21 employ 35:5 encourage 29:12 facilitate 9:23 forth 34:21 global 23:21 endeavor 33:15 facilitate 9:23 forth 34:21 global 23:21 endeavor 36:4 forum 25:23 15:1, 20 22:9 ended 23:5 facilities 34:14 forward 3:11 25:1, 20 22:9 enforcement facility 34:15 forward 3:11 24:12 27:11, 12 23:3 angaged 33:15 facing 25:15 faciled 27:19 24:6 26:5 goal 13:21 engaging 27:25 families 25:18 foundation 18:5 going 3:11, 13 engineered 34:20 families 25:18 foundation 18:5 7:21, 23 8:12 enlightenment 34:3 36:2 foundation 18:5 16:7 20:11 ensure 8:7 13:23 fast 28:7 foundation 18:5 16:7 20:11 entities 10:5 faceral 16:5 founded 23:23 22:12 29:18 32:1, 23 entry 39:3 feedback 33:16 feedback 33:16 fourth-quarter 10:20 39:23 40:17 especially 12:6 24:12 <th></th> <th></th> <th>•</th> <th></th>			•	
employ 35:5 F forth 34:21 global 23:21 endeavor 39:15 facilitate 9:23 dendeavors 36:4 fortunate 10:7 go 6:21 11:21 endeavors 36:4 10:2 fortunate 10:7 go 6:21 11:21 ended 23:5 facilities 34:14 forum 25:23 15:1,20 22:9 enforcement facility 34:15 36:13 forward 3:11 24:12 27:11,12 23:3 engaged 33:15 facing 25:15 faciled 27:19 24:6 26:5 goal 13:21 engaging 27:25 failed 27:19 24:6 26:5 goes 22:15 engineered 34:20 families 25:18 found 29:23 31:8 going 3:11,13 ensure 8:7 13:23 fashion 13:24 foundation 18:5 16:7 20:11 entities 10:5 fast 28:7 foundations 10:6 26:18 27:25 entity 18:25 favor 6:5,16 founded 23:23 28:10 29:18 32:1,23 entry 39:3 feedback 33:16 four 15:8 four 15:8 29:18 32:1,23 equipment 10:4,8 feedback 33:16 free 7:24 8:9 Free 7:24 8:9 5:9,10 8:16,17 essence 18:22 felt 30:7,21<				
## Product		18:24		
endeavor 39:15 endeavors 36:4 ended 23:5 enforcement 31:25 engaged 33:15 engaged 33:15 engaging 27:25 28:8 engineered 34:20 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 entities 10:5 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 20:2 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 20:2 entry 39:3 equipment 10:4,8 17:21 18:20 34:2,11 especially 12:6 25:13 26:25 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 endeavors 36:4 10:2 facilitate 9:23 10:2 facilitate 9:23 10:2 fortunate 10:7 forum 25:23 26:15 29:8 forward 3:11 13:7 18:2 19:17 21:9,16 God 24:5, 5 27:17 goal 13:21 goal 13:21 goal 13:21 goal 13:21 goal 13:21 goal 13:21 forund 29:23 31:8 13:7 18:2 19:17 21:9,16 God 24:5, 5 27:17 going 3:11,13 7:21,23 8:12 32:24 Foundation 18:5 18:8 foundations 10:6 founded 23:23 founded 23:23 four 15:8 founded 23:23 four 15:8 founded 23:23 28:19 29:14,17 29:18 32:1,23 39:23 40:17 Franklin 5:1 good 3:4,5 4:21 Friday 23:5 fringes 10:10 17:11 21:12 15:1,20 22:9 22:11,12 23:3 24:12 27:11,12 goal 13:21 goal 13:21 goal 13:21 found 29:23 31:8 32:24 8:13,14 13:7 16:7 20:11 18:8 32:24 8:13,14 13:7 16:7 20:11 18:8 32:16 24:3,24 8:13,14 13:7 16:7 20:11 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:1 16:7 20:				_
endeavors 36:4 10:2 facilities 34:14 facility 34:15 26:15 29:8 15:1, 20 22:9 22:11, 12 23:3 24:12 27:11, 12 goal 3:3 24:12 27:11, 12 goal 3:3 24:12 27:11, 12 goal 3:3 24:12 27:11, 12 goal 3:1 24:12 27:17, 17 25:13 26:25 found 29:23 31:8 25:14 29:7, 25 and 18:1 25:14 29:7, 25 and 18:1 25:14 29:14, 17 25:14 29:14, 17 25:14 29:14, 17 25:14 29:14, 17 25:14 29:14, 17 25:14 29:14, 17 25:14 29:14, 17	-			
ended 23:5 enforcement 31:25facilities 34:14 facility 34:15 36:1326:15 29:8 forward 3:11 13:7 18:2 19:17 21:9,16 24:6 26:5 28:8 engineered 34:20 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 entities 10:5 entry 39:3 equipment 10:4,8 17:21 18:20 34:2,11 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5facilities 34:14 facility 34:15 36:13 facility 34:15 36:13 13:7 18:2 24:6 26:5 35:11 found 29:23 31:8 32:24 foundation 18:5 foundations 10:6 founded 23:23 foundations 10:622:11,12 23:3 24:12 27:11,12 goal 13:21 God 24:5,5 27:17 goes 22:15 going 3:11,13 7:21,23 8:12 8:13,14 13:7 16:7 20:11 23:16 24:3,24 26:18 27:25 foundations 10:6 founded 23:23 fourth-quarter 10:20 Franklin 5:1 Free 7:24 8:9 Friday 23:5 fringes 10:10 front 5:15 front 5:15 33:2,22,24eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14				_
enforcement 31:25facility 34:15 36:13forward 3:11 13:7 18:224:12 27:11,12 goal 13:21engaged 33:15 engaging 27:25 28:8facing 25:15 failed 27:19 28:8families 25:18 families 25:18 far 23:14 24:2019:17 21:9,16 24:6 26:5God 24:5,5 27:17 goes 22:15engineered 34:20 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 entities 10:5 entity 18:25far 23:14 24:20 34:3 36:2found 29:23 31:8 32:247:21,23 8:12 8:13,14 13:7ensure 8:7 13:23 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 entity 18:25 17:21 18:20 34:2,11fashion 13:24 feedback 33:16 feed 34:15,17 fellowship 23:18foundation 18:5 founded 23:23 four 15:8 four 15:8 four 15:8 four 15:8 four 15:829:18 32:1,23 29:18 32:1,23 39:23 40:17expecially 12:6 25:13 26:25 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5facility 34:15 facing 25:15 facing 25:15 facing 25:15 facing 25:15 facing 25:15 facing 25:16 found 29:23 31:8 foundation 18:5 founded 23:23 four 15:8 four 15:8 four 15:8 four 15:8 four 15:8 four 15:10 fringes 10:10 fringes 10:10 33:2,22,24establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5fifteen 15:23 functions 13:10 fund 23:19fund 23:19				
31:2536:1313:7 18:2goal 13:21engaged 33:15facing 25:1519:17 21:9,16God 24:5,5 27:1728:8families 25:1835:11going 3:11,13engineered 34:20far 23:14 24:2034:3 36:232:248:13,14 13:7enlightenment34:3 36:232:248:13,14 13:721:14farmers 30:18fashion 13:24Foundation 18:516:7 20:11entities 10:5fast 28:7founded 23:2323:16 24:3,24entity 18:25favor 6:5,16founded 23:2328:19 29:14,1720:241:10four 15:829:18 32:1,23entry 39:3federal 16:5fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:16fourth-quarter39:23 40:1734:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17essence 18:22felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21fringes 10:1017:11 21:12establishmentfelt 30:7,21fountions 13:1033:2,22,2413:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19event ful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14				
engaged 33:15 engaging 27:25 28:8 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 entity 18:25 entry 39:3 equipment 10:4,8 17:21 18:20 20:2 entry 39:3 entry 39:3 entry 39:3 entry 39:3 entry 39:3 entry 39:3 especially 12:6 25:13 26:25 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 event ful 8:5facing 25:15 failed 27:19 failed 27:19 34:2 118 families 25:18 families 25:18 far 23:14 24:20 34:3 36:2 Farmers 30:18 fast 28:7 fast 28:7 favor 6:5,16 federal 16:5 feedback 33:16 feet 34:15,17 fellowship 23:18 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 event ful 8:519:17 21:9,16 24:6 26:5 35:11 found 29:23 31:8 18:8 foundation 18:5 foundations 10:6 founded 23:23 fourth-quarter 10:20 fourth-quarter 10:20 fringes 10:10 fringes 10:10 front 5:15 fringes 10:10 front 5:15 frund 23:197:21:7 90es 22:15 going 3:11,13 7:21,23 8:12 8:13,14 13:7 16:7 20:11 16:7 20:11 16:7 20:11 16:7 20:11 16:7 20:11 16:7 20:11 10:20 		-		
engaging 27:25failed 27:1924:6 26:5goes 22:1528:8families 25:1835:117:21,23 8:12enlightenment34:3 36:232:248:13,14 13:721:14Farmers 30:18foundation 18:516:7 20:11ensure 8:7 13:23fashion 13:24foundations 10:626:18 27:25entities 10:5fast 28:7founded 23:2328:19 29:14,17entity 18:25favor 6:5,16fourded 23:2328:19 29:14,1720:241:10four 15:829:18 32:1,23entry 39:3feedback 33:16fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:16fourth-quarter39:23 40:1717:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:21a4:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:512:20,21 17:10essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentfifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:1913:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14				
28:8 engineered 34:20 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 entities 10:5 entity 18:25 entry 39:3 equipment 10:4,8 17:21 18:20 34:2,11 especially 12:6 25:13 26:25 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5 families 25:18 far 23:14 24:20 found 29:23 31:8 found 29:23 40:11 found 29:23 31:8 found 29:23 40:12 found 29:23 40:12 found 20:24 found 20:25 found 20:26 found 20:27 found 20:29 found 20:				
engineered 34:20 enlightenment 21:14 ensure 8:7 13:23 entities 10:5 entry 39:3 equipment 10:4,8 17:21 18:20 34:2,11 especially 12:6 25:13 26:25 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5far 23:14 24:20 34:3 36:2 farmers 30:18 fashion 13:24 fast 28:7 favor 6:5,16 41:10foundation 18:5 18:8 foundations 10:6 founded 23:23 founded 23:23 founded 23:23 founded 23:23 founded 23:23 founded 23:23 four 15:8 four 15:8 fourth-quarter 10:20 Franklin 5:1 Free 7:24 8:9 Friday 23:5 fringes 10:10 founded 23:23 fourth-quarter 10:20 Franklin 5:1 Free 7:24 8:9 fringes 10:10 fringes 10:10 front 5:15 full 42:13 functions 13:10 found 29:23 31:8 16:7 20:11 23:16 24:3, 24 26:18 27:25 28:19 29:14, 17 29:18 32:1, 23 34:20, 23:16 24:3, 24 26:18 27:25 28:19 29:14, 17 29:18 32:1, 23 34:10 38:12 39:23 40:17 900d 3:4, 5 4:21 5:9, 10 8:16, 17 17:11 21:12 25:11 29:7, 20 33:2, 22, 24 33:2, 22, 24 35:9 37:19 38:12 39:14				_
enlightenment34:3 36:232:248:13,14 13:721:14Farmers 30:18Foundation 18:516:7 20:11ensure 8:7 13:23fashion 13:2418:823:16 24:3,24entities 10:5fast 28:7foundations 10:626:18 27:25entity 18:25favor 6:5,16founded 23:2328:19 29:14,1720:241:10four 15:829:18 32:1,23entry 39:3federal 16:5fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:1610:2039:23 40:1717:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:55:9,10 8:16,1725:13 26:25felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentFerguson 26:16full 42:1333:2,22,2413:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14				
21:14Farmers 30:18Foundation 18:516:7 20:11ensure 8:7 13:23fashion 13:2418:823:16 24:3,24entities 10:5fast 28:7foundations 10:626:18 27:25entity 18:25favor 6:5,16founded 23:2328:19 29:14,1720:241:10four 15:829:18 32:1,23entry 39:3federal 16:5fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:1610:2039:23 40:1717:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:512:20,21 17:1025:13 26:25felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentFerguson 26:16full 42:1333:2,22,2413:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14	=			
ensure 8:7 13:23fashion 13:2418:823:16 24:3,24entities 10:5fast 28:7foundations 10:626:18 27:25entity 18:25favor 6:5,16founded 23:2328:19 29:14,1720:241:10four 15:829:18 32:1,23entry 39:3federal 16:5fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:16fourth-quarter34:2039:23 40:1717:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:55:9,10 8:16,1725:13 26:25felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentFerguson 26:16full 42:1333:2,22,2413:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14	<u> </u>			
entities 10:5fast 28:7foundations 10:626:18 27:25entity 18:25favor 6:5, 16founded 23:2328:19 29:14,1720:241:10four 15:829:18 32:1,23entry 39:3federal 16:5fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:16fourth-quarter34:2039:23 40:1717:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:512:20,21 17:1025:13 26:25felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentFerguson 26:16full 42:1333:2,22,2413:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14				
entity 18:25favor 6:5,16founded 23:2328:19 29:14,1720:241:10four 15:829:18 32:1,23entry 39:3federal 16:5fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:1610:2039:23 40:1717:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:512:20,21 17:1025:13 26:25felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentfifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:1913:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14				
20:2 entry 39:3 equipment 10:4,8 17:21 18:20 34:2,11 especially 12:6 25:13 26:25 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5 41:10 federal 16:5 federal 16:5 federal 16:5 federal 16:5 fourth-quarter 10:20 39:23 40:17 Franklin 5:1 Free 7:24 8:9 Friday 23:5 fringes 10:10 17:11 21:12 felt 30:7,21 front 5:15 front 5:15 front 5:15 33:2,22,24 functions 13:10 38:12 39:14				
entry 39:3federal 16:5fourth-quarter34:10 38:12equipment 10:4,8feedback 33:1610:2039:23 40:1717:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:512:20,21 17:1025:13 26:25felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentfifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:1913:1631:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14	<u>=</u>	-		
equipment 10:4,8 17:21 18:20feedback 33:16 feet 34:15,17 fellowship 23:1810:2039:23 40:17 good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11 especially 12:6 25:13 26:25 essence 18:22 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:524:12 fellowship 23:18 24:12 fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:9 friday 23:5 fringes 10:10 front 5:15 full 42:13 functions 13:105:9,10 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 25:11 29:7,20 33:2,22,24 33:2,22,24				
17:21 18:20feet 34:15,17Franklin 5:1good 3:4,5 4:2134:2,11fellowship 23:18Free 7:24 8:95:9,10 8:16,17especially 12:624:12Friday 23:512:20,21 17:1025:13 26:25felony 7:10fringes 10:1017:11 21:12essence 18:22felt 30:7,21front 5:1525:11 29:7,20establishmentFerguson 26:16full 42:1333:2,22,2413:16fifteen 15:23functions 13:1035:9 37:19eventful 8:531:25 40:18Fund 23:1938:12 39:14	-		_	
34:2,11 especially 12:6 25:13 26:25 establishment 13:16 eventful 8:5fellowship 23:18 24:12 felony 7:10 fellowship 23:18 24:12 friday 23:5 fringes 10:10 front 5:15 functions 13:105:9,10 8:16,17 12:20,21 17:10 17:11 21:12 25:11 29:7,20 33:2,22,24 functions 13:10 38:12 39:14				
especially 12:6 24:12 Friday 23:5 12:20,21 17:10 25:13 26:25 felony 7:10 fringes 10:10 17:11 21:12 essence 18:22 felt 30:7,21 front 5:15 25:11 29:7,20 establishment fifteen 15:23 functions 13:10 35:9 37:19 eventful 8:5 31:25 40:18 Fund 23:19 38:12 39:14				1 -
25:13 26:25		=		
essence 18:22 felt 30:7,21 front 5:15 25:11 29:7,20 establishment Ferguson 26:16 full 42:13 33:2,22,24 13:16 fifteen 15:23 functions 13:10 35:9 37:19 eventful 8:5 31:25 40:18 Fund 23:19 38:12 39:14			_	
establishment Ferguson 26:16 full 42:13 33:2,22,24 13:16 fifteen 15:23 functions 13:10 35:9 37:19 eventful 8:5 31:25 40:18 Fund 23:19 38:12 39:14		_	_	
13:16 fifteen 15:23 functions 13:10 35:9 37:19 eventful 8:5 31:25 40:18 Fund 23:19 38:12 39:14				
eventful 8:5 31:25 40:18 Fund 23:19 38:12 39:14				

<pre>gotten 38:15 39:25</pre>
<pre>government 15:9</pre>
16:5 governmental
10:5
Grace 21:4 graduates 20:25
21:1
<pre>graduating 21:1 36:12</pre>
graduation 20:24
21:5
<pre>grams 7:11,12,12 grant 7:18,19</pre>
8:24 9:2 10:4
11:4,7,21,23 12:3 13:13
14:2 15:10,18
grants 4:24,25 5:1 6:24 8:13
5:1 6:24 8:13 8:15,21,25 9:9
9:16,19,20
9:16,19,20 10:12,12,13,14
10:15,18,21,23 10:25 12:4,13
12:23 13:5,7,9 13:10,14,18,20
13:10,14,18,20
13:23 14:7,7 14:18 15:7,7
16:10
great 4:20 8:23
9:18 20:4 27:5 27:5 32:8
34:20 36:10,14
34:20 36:10,14 36:16,19 41:13 Greater 21:4
grow 7:13,14
guarantee 39:23
guess 15:8,10,11 gun 31:12 32:1
guys 21:16 34:22
35:6 36:19

Н
half 25:4 37:15
37 : 21
Hall 2:10 4:16
4:17,18,21 5:4
5:8 6:25 7:3
16:20,23 17:7
20:21,23 21:4

21:16,19 30:14
31:6,22 32:21
33:6,10,19
39 : 17
Hall's 20:20
hand 3:12
handout 13:3
handouts 12:25
hands 31:2
hands-on 31:7
Hanson 5:17
happen 31:3
happened 38:8
happening 26:12
27:8 36:15
happens 14:21
31:1 34:13
happy 14:8 hardest 32:6
33:11
harm 34:7
Hartford 25:17
29:9
Headquarters
1:17 29:1
1:17 29:1 40:25
40:25 healthy 25:2
40:25 healthy 25:2
40:25
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24 historically 7:7
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24 historically 7:7 27:1 40:11
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24 historically 7:7 27:1 40:11 holding 25:17
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24 historically 7:7 27:1 40:11 holding 25:17 honor 24:8
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24 historically 7:7 27:1 40:11 holding 25:17 honor 24:8 Honorable 16:16
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24 historically 7:7 27:1 40:11 holding 25:17 honor 24:8 Honorable 16:16 hope 18:16 36:4
40:25 healthy 25:2 hear 35:21 38:9 40:19 heard 37:7,8 hearing 41:15 heart 3:10 Hello 4:17 help 14:2 37:23 38:18 hereinbefore 42:10 heroin 7:12 High 34:16 hire 11:23 15:18 hired 11:12 hiring 15:7 22:24 historically 7:7 27:1 40:11 holding 25:17 honor 24:8 Honorable 16:16

/2014
hour 21:12 house 7:13 30:2 housed 34:18 hundred 18:19 33:14
I
<pre>identify 29:4 immediate 17:2 impact 35:16 implementation</pre>
14:4,16
<pre>important 35:7</pre>
<pre>improved 33:14</pre>
incarcerated 37:11,13,24
38:13 39:1 include 9:24 10:3,5
includes 10:11 12:7 13:5
18:19 indicated 18:17
34:24 inform 18:4
information
31:15
informative 25:
initially 18:23
initiative 7:19

n 4 17 5:3 23 19 14:19 15:1 innocence 40:9 installed 34:11installer 34:4 instance 25:16 26:15 27:18 interact 21:10 interaction 26:23 interest 17:2518:9 26:6,7,8 intergovernme... 9:25 24:4 30:15 22:24 interworking

internal 20:13 international interrupt 17:6 interview 23:24 interviewing

35:17 introduce 3:14 4:19 5:11 introducing 4:15 introductions 5:19 investigate 32:25 40:14 investigation 31:7 investigator 5:16 21:11,25 22:9,14 37:19 Investigators 22:25 involved 24:126:11 involvement 24:14 in-kind 28:16 **issue** 20:8 25:10 25:20 26:5 28:1 35:16,23 35:24 **issues** 12:5 22:1 25:15 28:1 37:22 Item 23:14 items 6:21

J **JAG** 10:15,25 **Jessica** 2:5 4:9 17:2 **job** 9:18 13:19 14:1 32:8 36:19 40:3 joined 16:21 17:3 joining 21:8 Jones 12:13,20 12:22,22 14:14 14:24 17:25 18:4,6 judge 26:4 39:7 June 10:14,22 42:21 justice 11:3,5 11:22 25:18 27:7 28:11 37:8

hosting 7:23

K
Kansas 16:3 keep 11:25 39:7
Keeping 9:7
kind 17:23 40:13 kit 37:16 38:15
39:3
kits 18:20 38:16 39:2
know 3:10 7:9 15:15 19:16 22:8 24:11
25:22 26:1,2,2 26:6 27:6 29:8 29:16,24 30:25
32:5,11,20 33:13 35:13,16 35:22 36:2,3
37:12,14 38:24 39:4,10,15
40:2,9 Koller1:21 5:17 42:8,18 Kyla 17:12
-

L

L3:22 lady 30:18 37:25 lady's 29:22 **late** 11:6 law 31:24 39:20 **lawyer** 39:4 **layoff** 11:23 leaders 26:18 leads 32:22 **leases** 9:24 **leave** 20:12 leaving 24:19 **left** 4:16 11:15 17:1 **legally** 39:13 **letters** 22:3, 16 22:19 **let's** 24:16 lieutenant 32:5 41:2 Line 18:16 **Lisa** 3:18 12:13 12:22 **list** 10:11 little 3:9

live 35:5 lobbying 36:2 local 34:1 **located** 34:14,15 lockdown 34:21 long 28:19 40:17 look 10:22 25:15 26:9,11,18 36:14,19 40:11 looked 27:10 looking 19:2 21:9,16 24:6 25:6 32:9,12 35:2 looks 31:1 **lot** 7:10 12:7 26:13 29:12 loud 26:3 **love** 36:18 luck 37:19 38:12 39:14

М

MacAlister 41:2 41:4 **Macomb** 36:17 main 29:19 maintaining 8:8 major 25:14 man 37:13 management 9:1 12:14,23 13:6 13:7,10,17 14:7,7,19 managing 13:9 marathon 7:24 8:2,9 March 12:1 marijuana 7:12 Market 30:18 **Marshall** 23:18 23:19,23 24:11 Martin 25:19 matters 31:2 Mayfield 29:20 29:21 30:10,12 30:16 31:20 32:18 33:2 Mayor 24:22,23 26:6 27:6,21 27:22,23 28:11

Mayor's 25:3

ma'am16:13,1817:9 20:22 29:19 38:19 39:9,16 40:4,6 40:19 McNichols 34:14 meal 29:13 mean 34:7 media 1:16 32:20 32:20 33:4,6 medical 37:22 meet 24:22 29:1 **meeting** 1:3 3:7 7:22 19:19 20:12 24:21 25:2 34:23 meeting's 40:23 member 8:25 members 8:23 12:1 25:1 memorandums 9:22 10:1 Memorial 23:18 24:11 25:17 mentioned 34:2 met 8:22 25:5,5 35:15 Michael 25:19 Michigan 1:1,183:1 42:4,20 miles 36:13 Millhouse 4:25 **million** 10:21,22 11:10,15,15 minorities 26:25 minutes 6:10,11 17:3 29:4 35:18 36:7 misdemeanor 7:11 Mississippi 32:7 33:9 mode 14:13 mom 37:10,21 money 5:10 15:18 18:11,24 20:1 20:5 27:15 39:4 monitors 9:20,21 month 12:2 17:15 months 11:13

6:2,13 14:11 14:23 15:3 33:3 41:8 morning 24:23 Moss 5:3,3,4 motion 6:7,18 41:12 move 3:11 6:2,13 18:2 23:14 35:11 41:7 moved 6:4 28:24 41:9 movement 26:21 28:5,6,15 moving 19:16 26:5 28:16 multi-year 10:12 10:14 Mumford 34:16

N **NAACP** 26:17 37:9 **name** 12:22 29:20 33:25 37:4 national 23:21 **nature** 24:10,13 27:1 **near** 11:17 **need** 5:21 7:10 20:4 35:1 **needs** 35:3 negotiating 11:14 network 28:7 never 30:22 39:8 **new** 10:18 11:12 11:23 23:15 28:23 **newly** 13:2 **news** 29:21,25 30:9 31:18 32:19,20 38:9 38:14 **night** 17:23 25:16 33:16 **nights** 31:14 nine/seven 7:6 nonpartisan 23:20 nonprofit 23:20 **Notary** 42:19 notice 17:14



30:1

Moore 2:3 4:4,5

noticed 14:12 notification 11:5 notified 16:10 number 15:16,17 23:14

0

Obviously 39:20 OCFO's 13:2 14:22 15:1 October 1:20 3:2 6:10 28:25 40:24 office 8:25 11:17 12:11,13 12:23 13:5,8 14:6,17,18 16:9 21:24 22:12,14,15 38:21 40:8 **officer** 4:24,25 17:13 21:25 26:10 39:13 officers 11:1215:19,21,22,23 18:19 27:5 30:3 32:7 33:12 40:2 official 15:25 **OGM** 13:8,15,16 13:19 **OGM's** 12:25 13:9 14:24 **oh** 5:2 40:18 **okay** 4:21 5:4 10:13 16:13,15 19:20,24 20:7 20:17 21:7,20 22:20 23:10 31:4 33:20 36:24 39:9 40:4,10 **Old** 28:23 once 11:25 22:3 one's 32:1 online 23:2,3 24:12 open 18:13 29:13 40:14 operation 7:14

7:15,21

operations 8:20 8:24 9:5,5,8 9:14 opportunities 16:10 23:22 opportunity 6:11 23:25 24:22,25 29:4 **opposed** 6:7,18 41:12 order 5:23 6:9 7:5 23:2 organizational 9:4 13:1 outfits 34:6 **outside** 34:10 **overall** 27:4 33:14 oversight 25:2 25:24 26:9 overtime 10:9

overview 8:14,21 24:13 25:24 P **PAGE** 1:14 Pamela 5:15 22:9 panel's 29:14 Pannell 29:7,7 29:16 paperwork 37:24 **Pardon** 21:22 part 8:23 14:20 partial 4:19 participate 24:3 participating 23:17 particular 11:8 12:6 24:14 25:23 35:16 38:21 **partner** 18:12 **path** 25:10 patient 26:13 **pause** 12:17 pay 10:9 39:4 **payable** 9:7,12 9:13 **Payroll** 9:8,15 **people** 25:25

26:3,12,17,20

27:18 28:11,13

28:15,20,20 29:3,12 31:2 31:17 32:5 33:16 37:18 38:13 40:17 **percent** 33:14 **period** 10:14 11:17 16:12 22:7 Perkins 16:25 person 24:6 27:2 personal 9:24 personnel 16:21 21:23,24 perspective 40:15 pertaining 21:24 **phase** 14:4,16 picks 38:4 **PIO** 33:6 pizza 29:11,13 **place** 20:13 24:23 26:19 38:3 42:10 places 38:2 **plan** 19:16 21:7 23:23 **plants** 7:13 plastic 30:13 **plates** 34:20 platform 28:18 **played** 25:12 **please** 5:12 35:7 37:4,5 **pleased** 19:15 33:16 **pleasure** 6:1,12 12:16 41:6 **plus** 7:12 8:4 point 39:10,22 40:22 **points** 13:15 **police** 1:2 3:7 5:12 15:18 17:19 21:1 24:2 25:4 26:9 26:10,23 27:5 27:5,9,11,14 27:16,17 28:3 28:10 29:22,23 30:1,3,19,23

30:24 31:9,10

31:11,15,24 32:1,5,6,15 33:4,5,17 34:3 34:5,8 38:4,11 40:2,3 policing 27:1 portfolio 19:6 positions 11:19 **possible** 19:17 **power** 26:2 powers 26:1 36:3 **pray** 5:21 prayer 5:21,22 precinct 7:6 32:17 predominant 27:11,12 preparation 6:23 prepared 6:22 preparing 8:3 present 3:21,24 4:2,5,8 8:13 presentation 17:8 Press 7:24 8:9 **pretty** 14:20 24:12 35:22 preventing 11:23 primarily 39:11 **prior** 21:10 priorities 13:23 prison 37:15,20 40:18 private 10:5 privately 35:15 privilege 4:15 24:8 **pro** 26:10 **probably** 14:25 33:9 40:7 **problem** 32:12 problematic 7:7 proceed 12:15,17 12:18 proceedings 42:10,14 process 9:23 10:17 11:9 14:8 22:10 23:2,4,24 processed 38:20 processes 9:3

20:13
<pre>products 34:20</pre>
professional
9:25
program 13:13
17:17 23:18
<pre>programs 17:18 project 11:1,3</pre>
18:16 40:9
projects 20:14
35 : 11
properly 6:4
41:9
<pre>proposal 18:18</pre>
proposed 18:24
19:3
prosecutors
38:24 prosecutor's
38:21 39:13
40:7
protecting 8:7
protested 26:16
<pre>provide 13:13,14</pre>
13:19 17:18
18:13,17
provided 12:25
18:18 providing 8:20
27:16 29:11
30:17,24
<pre>public 1:17 28:1</pre>
29:2 40:24
42:19
publicly 35:14
purchase 10:8
<pre>purchasing 9:7 9:11,12 34:10</pre>
9:11,12 34:10 pursue 36:4
put 38:6,10
putting 17:14
p.m 1:19 3:3
40:25 41:15
<u>Q</u>
question 6:16

15:6,13 19:1

10:25 12:15,17

14:6,8,9 16:17

18:25 20:18,19

21:24 38:22

questions 6:5

quite 23:12
quo 28:5,5 quorum 4:12
quorum 4:12
R
R4:3,10
radio 30:11
<pre>radio/video 34:4 ramble 36:18</pre>
rape 37:16 38:15 38:16,25 39:2
39 : 3
reach 19:7,22
reached 40:10 ready 6:15
ready 6:15 really 33:16
39:13
realm 39:12
reason 39:6
recall 11:8
15:21 16:3 receive 10:7
12:5 19:11
22:18
received 11:2,16
17:15 22:6
reception 3:9
recipient 13:12 14:3
recognition
16:21
recommendations
18:13 record 3:17 22:8
records:17 22:0 recorder 5:17
recover 30:2,3,5
31:16
recovered 31:16
32:23 rectified 32:13
rectified 32:13
reducing 11:20
reference 15:7
20:19 21:14
25:9,21 27:7
41:6 regard 13:17
Reginald 2:6
3:25

regional 23:21

quick 7:3

Quinn 5:16

DE	·CT	тт :	AR	1		2				
KE.				→ T	•	ی	\sim			
re	<u>.</u> Т	10	es se	2	8	:	۷.	_		
re	16	ea:	se	1	5	:	1	0		
	16	: 7								
re	11	Le:	f 3	5	:	2	0			
re	ms	r	ks	6		_ つ	n			
	20			U	•	_	U			
					_	_		_	_	
re	eme	em.	be:	r	3	Τ	:	Τ	Τ	
	31	:1	8	3	2	:	1	6		
Re	ne	e	4:	1	6					
re	[a	La	ci	n	τ	1	1	:	2	1
re	TO C	2	 - 7	•	ာ	_	3	٠	7	_
	- -)⊥ ' ^ 1	t 7	•	ے 1	,	J	′	7	
	/:	$\angle \perp$	9	:	Τ	/	_	_		
	13	: 2	2	1	9	:	1	1		
4	20	:2	0	2	4	:	2	0		
	31	:1	8							
			te	a	Δ	2		9		
			ľE:						_	
re	po	or	ti	n	3	5	:	Τ	8	
	13	:1	0,	1	5		2	4	:	7
re	g	r	ts	6	:	2	2			
			0							2.1
	23			_	_	٠	_	_	′	
	د ک	• ⊥	4							
				4	┕.		_1			
re			se	nt	te	96	þ			
re	:p 1			nt	te	90	d			
re	25	:1						3		
re re	25 :p i	:1	9 se :					3		
re re	25 :p 1 16	:1 :e:	9 se :	nt	t:	Ĺ	nç			
re re	25 :p 1 16 :q u	:1 :5 :e	9 se: st	nt	t :	i.;	n 9			
re re	25 :p 1 16 :q u	:1 :5 :e	9 se: st	nt	t :	i.;	n 9			
re	25 :p: 16 :q: 19	:1 :5 :e: :7 :2	9 se : st 0	nt 1	5 :	i: 2	2 3	4		-
re	25 :p 1 16 :q 1 19 38 :q 1	:1 :5 :e: :7 :2	9 se: st 0 st:	ni 1 9	5 :	i.i : 2	2 3	4	:	11
re	25 16 :q 19 38 :q	:1 :5 :e: :7 :2	9 se st 0 st	1 9 in	5 :	i.i : 2 2	2 3 1 0	4	:	11
re	25 :p 1 16 :q 1 38 :q 1	:1 :5 :5 :7 :2 :2	9 se: 0 st: ve	nt 1 9 in	5 :	: 2 : 2 8	2 3 1 0	- 4 8		
re	25 :p 1 16 :q 1 38 :q 1	:1 :5 :5 :7 :2 :2	9 se: 0 st: ve	nt 1 9 in	5 :	: 2 : 2 8	2 3 1 0	- 4 8		
re re re re	25 :pi 16 :qi 19 38 :qi :se	:1 :5 :5 :7 :2 :2 :2 :2	9 se: 2 0 st. ve	ni 1 9 in 6	5 :	i: 2	2 3 1 0 :2	- 4 8 7 9		
re re re re re	25 epi 16 eqi 38 eqi esi esi esi	:1 :5 :5 :7 :2 :2 :2 :2 :0	sex st 0 st. ve	ni 1 9 in 6	5 :	i: 2	2 3 1 0 :2	- 4 8 7 9		
re re re re re	25 epi 16 eqi eqi esi esi esi esi esi esi esi	:1 :5 :5 :7 :2 :2 :2 :2 :2 :5 :5 :5	9 se: 2 0 st. ve rcc	1 9 in 6 en	5 : no: s	: 2 3 2 8 1: :	2 3 1 0 :2 1	- 4 8 7 9 4	:	5
re re re re re	25 ipi 16 iqi 19 38 iqi isi isi isi 31 isi	:1:5:5:5:2:2:2:2:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5	9 se: 2 0 st. ve ct: nd	1 9 in 6 es	5 : ng: 5 u 9	i: 2	2 3 1 0 : 2 1 0	8 7 9 4	:	5
re re re re re	25 ipi 16 iqi 19 38 iqi isi isi 31 isi 35	:1:5:5:5:2:2:2:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5	9 se: 0 st. ve rcc ct: nd	1 9 in 6 es fi 1 es 3	5 : no: 5 ui 9	in : 2	23 10:21 01	4 8 7 9 4	:	5
re re re re re	25 ipi 16 iqi 19 38 iqi isi isi 31 isi 35	:1:5:5:5:2:2:2:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5	9 se: 0 st. ve rcc ct: nd	1 9 in 6 es fi 1 es 3	5 : no: 5 ui 9	in : 2	23 10:21 01	4 8 7 9 4	:	5
re re re re re	25 ipi 16 iqi 38 iqi isi isi 31 isi isi 35 isi isi	:1:5:5:10::00::00::00::00::00::00::00::0	9 set 2 0 st. ve rc ct. nd	19 106 est	5: ng: 5 12 6 ng:	i: : 2	23 10:21 012	4 8 7 9 4 •	: 2	5
re re re re re re	25 :p1 16 :q1 38 :q1 :s1 :s1 :s1 :s1 :s1 :s1 :s1	:1:5:5:5:2:2:2:2:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5	9 se: 0 st. ve rcc ct: nd	19 106 est	5: ng: 5 12 6 ng:	i: : 2	23 10:21 012	4 8 7 9 4 •	: 2	5
re re re re re re	25 :pi 16 19 38 :qi :si :si :si :si :si :si :si	:1 :5 :7 :2 :2 :2 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :1 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5	9 set 2 0 st. ve rcctind 4 nd	nt 19 in 6 est 1 est 1	5 : ng: 5 d 6 ng 3	i) :2 9 28 L : 3: 9 3	23 10:21 012:	4 8 794 • 91	: 2 : 3	5 2 22
re re re re re re	25 :p 1 16 19 38 :e 1 :e 1 35 :e 1 :e	:1 :5 :5 :7 :2 :2 :2 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5 :5	9 se: 2 0 st. ve rcc that and and and and and	nt 19 in 6 est 1 est 1	5 : ng: 5 d 6 ng 3	i) :2 9 28 L : 3: 9 3	23 10:21 012:	4 8 794 • 91	: 2 : 3	5 2 22
re re re re re	25 25 26 16 27 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28	:1:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:	9 set 2 0 st. ve rcc that and and nse	nt 19 in 6 es fin e 3 in e	5: ng: 5 d 6 ng 3	i) :2 9 28 L : 3: 9 3	23 10:21 012:	4 8 794 : 91	: 2 :3	5 2 22
re re re re re re	25 25 16 27 19 38 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 2	:1:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:	9 se: st 2 0 st: ve rcct: nd nde nse: ns:	nt 19 in 6 es fin e 3 in e	5: ng: 5 d 6 ng 3	i) :2 9 28 L : 3: 9 3	23 10:21 012:	4 8 794 : 91	: 2 :3	5 2 22
re re re re re re	25 25 26 16 27 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28	:1:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:	9 se: st 2 0 st: ve rcct: nd nde nse: ns:	nt 19 in 6 es fin e 3 in e	5: ng: 5 d 6 ng 3	i) :2 9 28 L : 3: 9 3	23 10:21 012:	4 8 794 : 91	: 2 :3	5 2 22
refreshed refres	25 25 16 19 38 28 28 21 25 25 27 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28	:1:5:5:5:2:2:2:2:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5	9 se: 2 0 st. vectind nd nd nd ns ns:	nd 19 in 6 in 6 in e in i	5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5	2 2 3 2 8 1 : 3 : 3 : 3 : 1 : 1 : 1 : 1 : 1 : 1 :	2 3 1 0 : 2 1 1 : 1 : 1 :	4 8 794 : 91	: 2 :3	5 2 22
refreshed refres	25 16 19 38 19 38 19 38 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 14 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	:1:5:5:5:2:2:2:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5	ses st 2 0 st. vector and and ans 5	nd 19 in 6 in 6 in e in i	5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5: 5	2 2 3 2 8 1 : 3 : 3 : 3 : 1 : 1 : 1 : 1 : 1 : 1 :	2 3 1 0 : 2 1 1 : 1 : 1 :	4 8 794 : 91	: 2 :3	5 2 22
refreshed refres	25 16 19 38 19 38 19 38 19 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31	:1:5:5:5:5:1:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:	9 sex 2 0 st. ve ct. nd nde ns 5 re 5	nt 1 9 iii 6 es 1 1 e c 3 iii iii d d	5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5::	: 2 2 8 1 : 3 : 3 : : : : : :	233 100 : 221 012 : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	8 794 : 91	: 2 :3 :3	5 2 22
refresh refres	25 25 26 27 16 21 38 21 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38	:1 :5:5:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:2:	9 sex 2 0 st. ve ct. nd nd ns 5 re 5 ic	nii 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5::	:: 2 22 22 8 1: 3 :: 3 :: 3	23 10:21 01:2: 1 ::5 8	4 8 7 9 4 · · · 9 1 · iii	: 2 :3 : :	5 2 22
refreshed refres	25 25 26 27 16 28 28 28 28 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	:1:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:5:	9 sex 2 0 st. ve ct. nd nde ns 5 re 5	1 1 6 estillation of the control of	5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5:: 5::	:: 2	23 10:21 012: 1: 5 8 iii	8 794 : 91 iii	: 2 :3 : :	5 2 22

resumés 22:23 retired 32:4 41:2 review 6:11 18:7 19:13 22:11,13 22:17 reviews 9:20 **reward** 32:9 rewarding 21:13 **Ricardo** 2:3 4:3 Richard 2:8 4:6 **right** 5:14 7:3 8:12 16:8 28:25 29:1 32:22 35:18 39:22 40:24 **Rights** 24:2 26:17,19 **rise** 24:6 **role** 9:2 13:17 14:7,24 25:12 28:13 **roles** 13:4,7 roll 3:15 14:19 **room** 1:16 3:9 **Roscoe** 29:21 round 24:16 **Roy** 41:2 ruling 26:4 rumor 34:7,9 run 18:24 38:24 runners 8:1 S

Sabre 5:14 **safety**1:17 8:8 28:2 29:2 40:24 **salary** 10:9 **Sam** 33:25 sanctuary 29:16 29:19 satisfaction 36:8 **says** 38:6,12 39:2,3,5,6 **scars** 38:5 scheduled 20:24 School 34:16 scratches 38:5 **seated** 5:14,15 **second** 6:3,5,14

15:1

resumé 23:4,24

8:18 15:6 20:10 32:13 Secretary 2:9 3:13,16,17,22 3:25 4:3,6,9 5:11,13 21:11 **see** 5:9 12:24 13:3 35:24 37:22 39:17,21 41:2,3 seeing 7:8 **seeks** 9:19 seen 38:14 **send** 19:5 22:16 sending 20:1 Sensationalize 32:21 **sense** 32:3 sensitive 26:22 **sent** 19:5,9 22:21 31:15 separate 7:18 September 10:16 11:6 Sergeant 4:23 5:1,16 16:25 17:12 20:12 service 5:18 9:24,25 27:16 29:23 30:17,25 33:17 **services** 10:4,9 18:18 servicing 34:4**set** 7:14 13:12 42:10 setting 24:4 **seven** 25:14 **SGT** 17:10,12 **share** 24:15 28:21 **Sharon** 29:7 **sheet** 15:21 **Shelby** 2:8 4:7,8 **Sheriff** 36:17 shooting 32:18 **short** 17:14 **shot** 32:19 **showed** 29:25 30:12 **side** 32:7

sign 39:3

single 13:22 37:10 **sir** 4:14 5:13 15:4 17:4 19:24,25 23:9 29:19 30:10 33:10,21,24 35:13 36:21 41:3,4 **sister** 37:21 **six** 4:12 12:2 30:1 **skids** 34:20 **slide** 10:11 **small** 34:23 smaller 21:5Social 25:18 **solid** 14:21 **Somebody** 32:19 someone's 38:18 somewhat 25:23 son 37:11,14,20 37:23,25 38:10 son's 38:16 **soon** 19:17,23 **sorry** 5:2 15:12 22:8,24 30:14 40:18 **sort** 17:23 sources 10:4 **South** 26:20 **spark** 28:8 **speak** 14:5 18:1 20:8 29:4 35:18 speaking 9:1 29:15 special 17:17 spectators 8:1 **speed** 24:5 **spend** 40:17 **spent** 13:24 27:15,15 **spirit** 23:22 **spoke** 26:3 28:13 35:24 **square** 34:15,17 **SS** 42:5 **staff** 4:19 5:12 8:23 9:12,14

38:12 standard 8:11 standing 21:20 21:21 28:12,19 37:12 standpoint 39:19 **start** 31:2 40:1 40:7 **state** 1:1 13:4 23:19 33:12 40:8 42:4 stated 38:6 **states** 37:24 38:4,17 station 30:4 31:10,11 32:1 32:17 **stats** 7:22 **status** 28:4,5 **stay** 28:5 stenographically 42:9 **stopped** 30:7 **story** 29:22,24 30:9 31:14 **street** 34:16 strengthening 23:20 strong 25:8 structural 9:4 structure 13:2 **stuff** 28:6 **stupid** 39:7 submitted 15:24 sub-recipients 12:7,8 successful 7:15 suggested 18:15 **Sunday** 7:25 supervision 42:12 Supervisors 32:7 supplanting 11:20 supplier 34:3 36:16 **support** 13:19 17:17 41:8 supported 41:10 **sure** 20:13,15

21:18 22:21

24:12 28:9

34:12 35:22 **survivor** 18:20 **switch** 11:23 **system** 37:8

take 4:15 10:22 12:7 19:12 28:7 31:12 32:1 35:3 36:14,19 40:11 **taken** 1:16 39:5 talk 5:10 20:11 24:25 25:24,25 33:8 38:11 39:18 **talked** 17:25 20:1 30:2 37:18 **talking** 30:18 taping 28:6 taxpayer 35:4 **tax-based** 35:4 **Taylor** 2:5 4:10 17:2,4 team 10:19 14:4 technology 10:8 37:11,23 40:16 tell 8:23 tells 37:19 ten 15:23,23 40:18 terms 15:10,16 19:15 21:13 22:1 23:24 24:8,13 25:6 26:2,3,22 27:4 27:10,25 33:16 33:17 36:8 40:6,12,14 **tested** 32:23 thank 3:16 4:14 5:9,13,20 12:15,19 14:5 15:3 16:14,18 16:19 17:1,4 17:13 20:7,10 20:18 21:15 23:10 27:16 28:22 29:19 33:19 36:11,21 36:22,24,24



stage 11:11

stand 28:19

41:1,4,13
thing 20:4,21 30:16,19 36:12
38:15
things 30:25
think 5:2 6:22 6:23 7:24
6:23 7:24
19:15,18 20:4
20:7 24:5,8,18
24:19 25:2,5,8
25:11 29:14
35:10,15,22
6:23 /:24 14:24 19:11,12 19:15,18 20:4 20:7 24:5,8,18 24:19 25:2,5,8 25:11 29:14 30:16,23,23 35:10,15,22 39:9,11 Third 1:16
IIIII u i . i o
thirty 35:9 Thomas 18:1 19:4
19:9,23
thought $18:8$
25:2
thousands 7:25 7:25
three 5:6 7:10
11:24
Thursday 1:20
6:10 28:25 tie 37:25
time 4:20 5:20
8:2 9:6 11:11
12:7,10 21:5
21:21 22:7,13 22:15 29:8
22:15 29:8 31:8 33:13 37:1 38:3 40:22 42:10
37:1 38:3
40:22 42:10 timeframe 14:23
22:18
timeline $11:3$
23:6,8
timelines 11:1 timely 13:24
19:21 25:23
times 32:8
timing 12:5
Tina 4:22 8:18 today 7:21 8:20
14:5 15:16
19:7,23 37:7
Todd 16:25
told 30:3 Tolliver 4:22
TOTTTACT 4.77

8:13,16 12:19 1 15:20 1 16:19 1 19:22 2 20:11	5: 6:	6, 8, 4,	12 15 20
tomorrow	20	:2	5
21:2,17	2	4:	19
25:16 3 top 33:1	00:	12	
total 10:	20		
$\mathtt{track}\ 11$:	1		
training			9
17:21 1 20:5	.8:	19	
transatl	ant	:i	2
23:21			
transcri	pt	5:	18
transcri	pti	LOI	n
42:12,1 transpir		25	• 21
travel 25	eu :1	2 J N	• ∠ ⊥
travelin			4
Trayvon 2	5:	19	
trend 7:8			
trends 7:	9		
tried 38: true 29:2	ıΠ	12	•13
truly 36:	10	42	• 13
truth 31:	19		
try 36:5	39	:2	2
trying 7:	8 .	29	:12
30:1 32			
38:14,2 Tuesday 7			
24:23	• 0		
turn 26:1	.7		
TV 30:11,			
twenty 15			
<pre>twenty-f 15:22</pre>	176	•	
two 5:6 2	22:	1	
25.4 20	. 1		
31:14 3	4:	2,	14
34:22 3	55:	18	1 5
30:7,13	88.	7: 2:	8 9 T 2
31:14 3 34:22 3 36:7,13 37:20 3 type 17:2	4	-, 33	:15
35:20 3	6:	5,	8
сурісаті	y 1	0:	15
16:8			

U
unaware $14:17$
${f undergoing}\ 14:17$
understand 26:4
26:10,24,25
28:2 32:22
understanding
_
9:22 10:1
28:18
undertaken 24:15
undertaking
24:10
unique 24:10
28:4
unit 8:21 9:21
17:20 18:22
31:15
United 23:19
units 8:15 10:10
upload 23:4
upstairs 19:23
use 20:5
usually 40:8
v

various 9:20,23 vehicles 10:8 34:18 verified 32:14 **verify** 31:13 **Verizon** 17:16 18:1,5,7,10 19:4,8,9 **victim** 37:17 38:6 victim's 38:10 violence 4:23 17:8,13,18,19 17:20 20:6 37:8 **vote** 20:3

waiting 15:25 want 3:10 4:19 7:1,4 10:23 17:5,24 20:12 20:23 23:15 24:9,11,15,20 26:1 28:11,14 28:21 29:8

30:6,15,20 31:3,17 32:11 35:24 36:7,18 37:12,14 38:24 39:4,5,7,10 40:10,23 wanted 17:18 18:2 40:1,2 wants 20:8 warm 3:6,9,10 Washington 15:9 16:24 way 27:22 **Wayne** 42:6,20 weapon 29:23,25 30:2,3,4,6,12 31:16,16 32:23 weather 3:19 week 7:5 8:11 25:4 **weekend** 7:23 26:16 **weekly** 3:7 weeks 15:8 16:6 25:5 34:2,22 week's 7:22 weigh 39:11 weighing 25:9 **welcome** 3:6,10 23:12 36:6,13 37:2,2 Wendell 2:7 3:22 went 27:14 31:10 31:11 west 33:8 34:14 we'll 8:2 25:9 32:25 39:22,23 we're3:11 7:8 7:16,25 8:10 8:12 14:3,4,15 15:25 16:10,11 20:11 21:9,16 25:6 33:8,25 34:2,12 35:3,3 35:4,9 36:12 36:16 40:18 we've10:7 34:4 34:19 White 4:10 23:16 24:14 34:24 35:14,23

Williams 4:23

17:10,12,12 Willie 2:2,4 3:8 3:19 Wireless 17:16 18:1,5,8 wish 24:4 witnessed 27:3 word 15:25 work 7:10 9:14 9:17 14:1 16:9 26:10 35:10 36:14 40:13 **worked** 27:2 working 7:16,20 10:19 32:6 33:12 39:12 works 9:10,11,13 17:16 23:20 35:17 writing 19:3,8 20:3 wrong 27:11,12 27:14 40:1 wrongdoing 35:2 wrongfully 37:13 38:13 40:13

Y

year 11:8 12:6
 15:1 27:22
years 27:2,15
 31:25 37:15,21
 38:8,9 40:18
yesterday 18:7
young 24:5 26:12
 26:16,20 29:12
 37:13
YWCA 18:12,15

Z

zero 13:22

\$

\$11,000 39:4 \$18.9 10:22 \$2 11:15 \$200,000 17:20 \$31.4 10:21 \$5,537 7:14 \$6.3 11:15 \$8.3 11:10 1
11:14 42:21
1,145 7:12
1:00 8:3
10:00 21:2
103 7:12
11 10:25 23:14
110 34:10
12 10:25 15:15
13 15:15
1301 1:16
16 3:2
16th 1:20
1982 23:23

2

2002 27:6

2008 34:5 **2009** 15:21 **2010** 10:25 **2011** 11:7 15:15 15:22 **2012** 12:1 25:13 26:3 **2013** 11:3,6 15:22 **2014** 1:20 3:2 6:10 10:14,22 15:11,25 **2015** 15:2 2018 42:21 **23** 20:25 21:1 23rd 29:1 40:24 **27,000**8:1

3
3,60034:15
3:0029:240:25
3:061:193:3
3:5741:15
307:1010:16
23:17
3227:2
32,00034:17

42 1:14 **45** 22:17 **48226** 1:18

5

5:00 29:11,13 5:30 29:10,14 51 7:11 57th 7:24

	37CH 7.24
	6
	6:30 29:14
	60,0008:1,4
	7
	7:00 29 : 15
	7042 42:18
	74 27 : 22
-	8
-	8100 34:14
	9
	9th 6:10 7:6
	90th 22:18
	90-day 22:6
	911 31:9
	95 7:13
-	
-	
_	
_	